A SCORE CARD FOR THE RATING OF JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTS

,

A SCORE CARD FOR THE RATING OF JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTS

By

JACK ABRAHAM KAUFMAN Bachelor of Science Northeastern State College Tahlequah, Oklahoma

1934

Submitted to the Department of Commercial Education Oklahoma Agricultural and Mechanical College In Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements

For the Degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE

1942

alla test

LL MATERICKI, A

WELABOWA AGENCULTURAL & X& SANICAL COMLEMENT LIBRARY

NOV 27 1942

APPROVED BY:

Chairman, Thesis Committee

il C. Telile

Head of the Department

6, montosh Graduate School

ACKNOWLE DGEMENT

To Mrs. Ruth Williams, Professors C. K. Reiff and J. Andrew Holley, the teachers who served as a jury, and the authors and publishers of the textbooks used, I wish to express my sincere appreciation for their assistance in this study.

J. A. K.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER I. PURPOSE, METHODS, AND MATERIALS OF THE	Page
STUDY	1
1. Purpose of the study	2
2. Materials	3
3. Method and procedure	4
4. Review of related studies	7
CHAPTER II. DEVELOPMENT OF THE SCORE CARD FOR THE EVALUATION OF JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTS	12
1. The check-list	12
2. Results	17
3. Presentation	17
4. Illustrations	21
5. Content of text	23
6. Teacher and pupil aids	26
7. Mechanical features	28
8. Main divisions	28
9. Tabulation of jury ratings	30
CHAPTER III. THE SCORE CARD AND ITS APPLICATION TO THE EVALUATION OF JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOKS	40
1. Presentation	40
2. Illustrations	43
3. Content of text	44
4. Teacher and pupil aids	48
5. Mechanical features	50
6. Total scores allotted to textbooks	51
CHAPTER IV. SUMMARY	55
APPENDIX	57
BIBLIOGRAPHY	119

A

TABLES AND FORMS

		Page
Form I	The Check-list	14
Table I	Presentation	18
Table II	Illustrations	22
Table III	Content of Text	24
Table IV	Teacher and Pupil Aids	27
Table V	Mechanical Features	29
Table VI	Main Division Values	30
Form II	Computing weighted averages	31
Form III	The Score Card	34
Table VII	Rating of Textbooks on Presentation	41
Table VIII	Rating of Textbooks on Illustrations	44
Table IX	Rating of Textbooks on Content of Text	45
Table X	Rating of Textbooks on Teacher and Pupil Aids	49
Table XI	Rating of Textbooks on Mechanical Features	51
Table XIT	Total Points Allotted to Each Main Division	53

AND BAS BAS BAS.A.

vi

CHAPTER I

PURPOSE, METHODS, AND MATERIALS OF THE STUDY

The number of junior business training textbooks has been increasing rapidly in recent years. Therefore, teachers and administrators are finding it more and more difficult to select the most desirable text. Although textbooks are more carefully and scientifically prepared than ever before, the problems of choosing the text which best fits the needs of the school and community is of great importance. Of the importance of the textbook, Mr. Maxwell states:

"The textbook determines the content of instruction as well as the teaching procedures. A majority of our teachers have not had sufficient training in basic subject matter to be independent of the textbook."1

Teachers and administrators also are aware of the fact that the textbook is of such importance its selection must not be left to chance. Selecting a textbook should be done as objectively as possible according to Mr. Jacobs:

"Teachers know that when the final decision has been made they must abide by their selection--work and live with it--for an indefinite period of years. Because of this, the person who is selecting teaching materials should proceed in as objectively levelheaded a manner as he can devise."²

1 Maxwell, C. R., "Choosing the Best Textbook," <u>School</u> Executives Magazine, April, 1932, p. 343.

2 Jacobs, Leland B., "Eighteen Criteria for Choosing New Textbooks," Clearing House, 1937, Vol. XI, pp. 485-486. Other writers see the selection of a textbook as a serious matter. Of this Mr. Bullock says:

"....The adoption of a text is a serious matter.... it is very difficult for every teacher to know of and secure copies of every textbook written upon the subject he is teaching, and unless he studies every one he cannot be sure he is choosing the best. A teacher might think one textbook better than another because the publisher's representative is able to present certain features of his text in a more convincing way; or is able to use better salesmanship of the second text; or the teacher might be unduly influenced by the personality of a representative."

Several different methods may be used in selecting a textbook. A few of these are discussed in the review of other studies. Books may be compared with one another, or each book may be compared with a score card, or some form of outline that has been previously made.

In a recent survey conducted by Mr. W. O. Underwood, he found that:

"Ninety-three per cent of the teachers indicated their interest in obtaining an authoritative guide or score card to assist them in selecting textbooks."⁴

The teacher of junior business training must select wisely the text he expects to use.

PURPOSE OF THE STUDY

The purpose of this study is the preparation of a score card to be used as an objective basis in the selection of junior business training texts.

4 Underwood, Willis 0., "A Guide for Textbook Analysis," School Board Journal, Vol. 102, March, 1941, pp. 23-24.

³ Bullock, A. E., "A Scientific Evaluation of Bookkeeping Texts," Southwestern Publishing Company, p. 1.

A number of texts, published since 1936, are then rated by this score card to illustrate its use. Since recency of publication is considered important in the field of junior business training, only texts which have been published or revised within the past six years are rated.

MATERIALS

The materials used in devising a score card for the rating of junior business training texts include the check lists as scored by twenty junior business training teachers regarding essential or desirable criteria which, in their estimation, should be used in judging a book; the report of a committee of three experienced teachers, who applied the score cards to the textbooks; and the texts which were measured by the score card.

The following textbooks were used in this study:

- 1. Clinton A. Reed and James V. Morgan, <u>Introduction to</u> <u>Business</u>, Allyn and Bacon, New York, 1940.
- Lloyd L. Jones, <u>Our Business Life</u>, The Gregg Publishing Company, Chicago, 1939.
- Frederick G. Nichols, <u>Junior Business Training For</u> <u>Economic Living</u>, American Book Company, New York, 1936.
- 4. Raymond C. Goodfellow, The Fundamentals of Business Training, The Macmillan Company, New York, 1940.
- 5. Max B. Greenstein and Henry Smithline, Our Daily Contacts With Business, Lyons and Carnahan Company, Chicago, 1937.
- 6. A. B. ZuTavern and Elmer J. Erickson, The Business of Life, H. M. Rowe Company, Baltimore, 1942.

- Frnest H. Crabbe and Paul L. Salsgiver, <u>General</u> <u>Business</u>, Southwestern Publishing Company, Cincinnati, 1941.
- 8. A. B. ZuTavern and A. E. Bullock, <u>The Business of</u> <u>Life</u>, Commercial Textbook Company, South Pasadena, California, 1936.

METHOD AND PROCEDURE

The following steps were followed in preparing the score card for this study:

- A thorough study was made of all available junior business training texts, workbooks, teachers' manuals, and publishers' advertisements.
- 2. An analysis was made of related theses and other research materials.
- 3. A check-list was compiled after a study was made of the above materials, score cards, and other available materials.
- 4. A jury of experienced teachers was selected.
- 5. The score card was submitted to the jury for their consideration.
- A score card was prepared, based on the combined opinions of the jury members, as indicated in their responses to the check-list.
- 7. Selected textbooks were rated by the score card.

In order to select experienced teachers of junior business training who would be familiar with materials of publishers of recent junior business training materials, each publisher was requested by letter to furnish names and addresses of at least five experienced teachers.

Letters were sent to thirty-eight teachers, requesting each of them to serve as a member of the jury. A selfaddressed card was enclosed with each letter, on which a reply could be made by merely checking the desired response. Twenty-four of these replies were received. In these, twenty one teachers indicated their willingness to serve on the jury. Check-lists were then sent to the twenty-one teachers; checklists were also sent to a selected group of graduate students at Oklahoma A. & M. College. Twenty of the check-lists were returned satisfactorily checked and were used as the basis for compiling the score card.

The number of jurors using each publisher's materials are as follows:

PUBLISHER	OF TEACHERS
The Macmillan Company	3
Ginn and Company	1
Southwestern Publishing Company	3
Commercial Textbook Company	3
Gregg Publishing Company	3
Allyn & Bacon	2
Lyons and Carnahan Company	1
Oklahoma A. & M. Graduate Students (Publishers not given)	4
TOTAL	20

It is believed there is reasonable distribution of teachers among the publishers.

There is also a reasonable geographical distribution among the jurors. The following states were represented on the jury:

STATE	OF TEACHERS
California	1
Indiana	1
Kansas	2
Kentucky	2
Maryland	1
Nebraska	1
Oklahoma	4
Pennsylvania	2
Texas	2
Utah	1
Washington	1
Wisconsin	2
TOTAL	20

The method used in this study is known as the "Normative-Survey Method." The method may be defined as follows:

"....it is essentially a method of quantitative description of the general characteristics of the group ... ascertaining the prevailing conditions. It seeks to answer the questions, "What are the real facts with regard to the existing conditions.".... The compound adjective "normative-survey" is applied to this method in order to suggest the two closely related aspects of this kind of study. The word "survey"

indicates the gathering of data regarding current conditions. The word "normative" is used because surveys are frequently made for the purpose of ascertaining what is the normal or typical conditions, or practice."

REVIEW OF RELATED STUDIES

As far as can be determined, there have been no specific studies on the development and application of a score card in evaluating junior business training textbooks. The following reviews represent studies made in the field of junior business training or in textbook selection comparable to this study.

Underwood, Willis O., "The Analysis and Selection of Elementary School Textbooks," Masters Thesis, University of Colorado, 1938.

The purpose of this study was to devise a guide for teachers which would provide the advantages of a score card and at the same time eliminate the objections which have been raised against the score cards available.

The following procedure for devising a guide was used:

Questionnaires were sent to 465 teachers in seven states to determine the criteria they used in the selection of textbooks. One hundred questionnaires were completed and returned.

Personal interviews were arranged by the author with 264 textbook committee members in Colorado, Missouri, and Iowa to determine the criteria they used in judging of textbooks. They were asked, first, to list the criteria used

⁵ Good, Carter V., Barr, A. S., Scates, Douglas E., <u>The</u> <u>Methodology of Educational Research</u>, D. Appleton-Century Company, 1935, pp. 286-288.

in the selection of their books; second, why they adopted the book they did; and, third, why they did not adopt other books.

The criteria from the questionnaire and personal interviews were combined in one list.

Seven textbook score cards which had received sufficient recognition to be published in educational journals were analyzed. Score cards which related to specific fields such as spelling, mathematics, etc., were not included in this group of general textbook score cards.

From the information gained through the published score cards, the personal interviews with committee members, and the questionnaire, a combined score card was made including the criteria which were listed by the various groups. From the combined score card, "A Guide for Textbook Analysis" was made by listing those criteria which were named by three or more sources.

The study used the following main divisions in the completed guide:

1. Authorship

- 2. Content and Organization
- 3. Vocabulary and Readability
- 4. Method and Motivation
- 5. Teaching and Study Aids
- 6. Mechanical Make-up

7. Miscellaneous

The following use of the "Guide for Textbook Analysis" was suggested:

It should be used as a guide or as "directed study" in the analysis of textbooks.

It should serve as an aid to teachers in calling to their attention important features which should not be ignored in the examination of textbooks.

All items may not be of importance to all committees. In such cases, the committee may use the guide as a foundation and eliminate those criteria which do not apply to their situation.

In all cases the guide should be adapted to the local situation.

The criteria developed in this study should be of considerable reliability because of the fact that only points of agreement among the sources surveyed were used.

Krey, Isabelle Brown, "Vocabulary Study of Junior High School Textbooks on Business Training," Masters Thesis, George Washington University, 1934.

The purpose of this study was to analyze three junior high school textbooks on business training in regard to the vocabulary used by each book. The vocabularies were checked with Thorndike's teachers word book.

An alphabetical word list was presented showing the uncommon words in each of the textbooks. Frequency of use of each word was also shown.

The author found that the vocabulary difficulty is

great and that there is little agreement among the textbook writers as to essential commercial terms to be included in books on junior business training.

Moody, Ivy LaCour, "The Development and Application of a Score Card in Evaluating Workbooks in Elementary Business Training," Masters Thesis, Oklahoma A. & M. College, 1939.

The purpose of this study was to develop a score card for rating elementary business training workbooks and to apply the score card to selected workbooks.

A detailed analysis of eight available workbooks was made to determine the aims of authors and publishers. These aims, together with the opinions of teachers and the findings of experimental studies made in the field in general by educators, were used as the basis for the items listed on the questionnaire. The questionnaire was sent to a selected group of teachers in elementary business training for their opinions.

Members of the jury were asked to rate the fifty items in the questionnaire numerically according to their judgment as to whether each of the items was essential, desirable, of little or no value, or undesirable for workbook purposes.

Members of the jury were also asked to rate the four main divisions on the basis of 100 points each. The mean number of points (on the basis of 1000 points) as rated by the jury are as follows:

Format and Mechanical Features
 Organization, Content, and Materials 500 points

3. Provision for Individual Differences 179 points

4. Provision for Reviewing and Testing 182 points A weighted mean was then computed for each of the fifty features included in the questionnaire. Four of the features were found to be undesirable or of little or no value in accordance with these weighted averages. These four items were discarded, and the score card was finally developed containing forty-six items.

With the addition of directions as to how to use the score card, it was completed showing the perfect score for each of the forty-six features and each of the four main divisions.

The value of this score card lies in providing persons who are desirous of selecting elementary business training workbooks with objective criteria by which to rate the workbooks they have under consideration.

CHAPTER II

DEVELOPMENT OF THE SCORE CARD FOR THE EVALUATION OF JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTS

The technique used in this study is known as the "jury technique." This method may be defined as follows:

"An investigator secures the cooperation of a number of persons, referred to as 'judges,' who rank or rate in some other way the objects with which he is concerned. The process is commonly referred to as the 'jury technique,' since it involves the pooled judgments of a number of persons."

The score card developed in this study has a total of 1000 points apportioned to five main divisions according to their judged importance. Each of the main divisions is sub-divided into several items with the number of points for each item indicated. Members of the jury assigned weights to each of the items according to a suggested scale, ranging from the rating of "essential" down to the rating "of little value."

THE CHECK LIST

A study of other score cards in the fields of general and business education, a study of available literature on the subject of junior business training, and an analysis of junior business training texts and materials was carefully made. From these three sources a check-list was prepared.

A list of 126 items was prepared. The items were selected without any question as to their desirability since

1 Good, Barr, and Scates, op. cit., p. 413.

that would be determined by the jury.

The check-list was classified into five main divisions as follows:

	DIVISION	NUMBER OF ITEMS
I.	Presentationgeneral and aims in presentation	30
II.	Illustrations	6
III.	Content of Text	66
IV.	Teacher and Pupil Aids	12
٧.	Mechanical Features	12
	TOTAL	126

Additional blank spaces were provided under each division for suggested items by the jury. A few items were suggested, but no one suggested item was given sufficient weight to include in the completed check-list.

Thirty-eight teachers were requested to serve on the jury. A self-addressed card was enclosed with each request, on which a teacher could check his desired response. Twentyone teachers indicated their willingness to serve on the jury, and check-lists were sent to them. Check-lists were also sent to a selected group of graduate students at Oklahoma A. & M. College. Twenty of the check-lists were returned, all of which had been satisfactorily checked.

A copy of the check-list as sent to the jury is shown as Form I.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE OF THE CHECK-LIST

Following is a list of items and characteristics found in Junior usiness Training texts. You are requested to note in the designated olumn whether you consider each of these items as ESSENTIAL, DESIRABLE, F LITTLE VALUE, or UNDERSIRABLE in junior business training texts. he degree of desirability is to be noted by a numerical value, with he highest number denoting the greatest value in each group. No item hould be checked in more than one column. In determining in which colmn an item should be included, the following criteria are suggested: SSENTIAL as meaning those items which you consider necessary to meet he objectives and scope of a course in junior business training. DE-TRABLE as meaning those items which are desirable to include in junior usiness training textbooks but are not absolutely essential to making text complete. OF LITTLE VALUE as meaning those items which may be ncluded in a text but are not necessary in meeting the objectives and cope of the course. UNDESIRABLE as meaning those items of such small mportance as to make them undesirable to include in junior business raining textbooks.

start from the strength of the strength of the	: :			
TOPICS, PROBLEMS, PHASES	:Essen-:	Desir-:	Little:	Undesir-
		able :		
	:: 1			
Degree of Desirability	9:8:7	6:5:4	3:2:1	0
	; ; ; ;	1 1 1	1 1 1	
I. PRESENTATION			1 1 1	
General	<u></u>		<u>i i i</u>	
1. Material logically presented	1 1 1	sugged to do a discontration of the logistic discount of		
2. Unit method of presentation	1 1 .1 .1	1 1 1 1	1 1 1	
3. Workbook accompanies	1 1 1	No. A residence will be descent of the descent when		
4. Index	1 . 1 .1	a laboration resources on the second division in the	the subscription of the subscription of the local	
5. Preface	1 1 1		1 1 1	
6. Summaries	1 1 1		111	
7. Illustrations	1 1 1	Address of the Party of the Par	1 1 1	
8. Problems for written work	1 1 1		1 1 1	
9. Poetic references	1 1 1		111	
10. Business arithmetic problems	1 1 1		111	
11. Unit vocabulary drill 12. Spelling drills			111	
13. Penmanship drills	+ + + +			
14. Job problems	: : :			
15. Quiz programs	::-	: : : :		
16. Life situations and problems		: : : :		
17. Thought problems and questions				
18. Testing business understanding				
19. Activity projects	111			
20.			1 1 1	
21.	1 1 1		1 1 1	
22.	1 1 1	1 1 1 1	1 : 1	
23.	: : :	: : : :	: : :	
	: : :	: : :	: : : :	
Aims in presentation of material	1 1 1	: : : :	: : :	
1. Indirect vocational	: : :	: : : :	: : : :	
2. Personal-use value	1 1 1	1 1 1 1	1 1 1	
3. Evaluation of goods and services	: : :	1 1 1	1 1 1	
4. Skill Maintenance in arithmetic	1 11	1 1 1	: : :	
5. Improvement of panmanship	1 1 1	<u></u>	1 1 1	
6. English improvement				
7. Understanding of business terms	- <u> </u>			
8. Vocational guidance and explora-				
tion 9 Personal unions and mide				
9. Personal understanding and guiden				
10. Give an unierstanding of busines				
11. Develop habits, abilities, and	*			
skills for use in business				
		÷ ÷ ÷		
$\frac{13}{14}$				
15.		÷ • • •		
		÷		
	1 1 1	1.1.1	1 1 1	

a			2	15
TAD TOO THE DUACES	: 	17.	Of :	Undesir-
TOPICS, PROBLEMS, PHASES		: able :		
	:	: :		1
Degree of Desirability	9 8 7	654	3 2 1	0
- A sub-state of the second	: : :	1 1 1		
II. ILLUSTRATIONS	1 1 1	: : : :	: : :	
1. Actual photographs	+++	+ + + +		
2: Graphs	1 1 1	: : : :		
3. Charts	1 1 1	1 1 1	: :	
4. Business papers 5. Cartoons	1 1 1		1 1	
6. Colored illustrations	1 1 1	: : : :	1 1	
7.	46 1		NAME AND ADDRESS OF TAXABLE PARTY.	ļ
9.	i i i			the second state in the second state and the second state and the second state second state second state state
	1-11	a second characteristic in the second state of state of		<u></u>
III. CONTENT OF TEXT		1 1 1 1		
	1 1 1	1 1 1 1		
1. Personality and character devel- opment	+++	1 1 1		
2. Success requirements	1 11	1 : 		1
3. Leisure time uses	: : :	1 1 1		1
4. Good manners 5. Occupations and vocational	+ + +	+ + + +		
guidance	1 1 1	<u></u>		
6. Meaning of business	+ + +	+ + +		<u>.</u>
7. Communication 8. Business letter writing	1 1 1			
9. Mail services	1 1 1	1 1 1	1 1 1	1
10. Telephone service 11. Teletypewriter	+++	1 1 1	And the owner of the local division of the l	<u></u>
12. Telegraph service	+ + +	+++	with the second se	1
13. Cable service	1 1 1	1 1 1	: : :	An Annual State St
14. Wireless 15. Radiograms		+ + +	$\frac{1}{1}$	<u>.</u>
16. Newspapers	\div	1 1 1		
17. Books and magazines	1 1 1	: : :	: : :	1
18. Filing 19. Thrift		+ + +	<u>1 1 1</u> 1 1 1	
20. Investments	1 1 1	1 1 1	: : :	:
21. Insurance	1 1 1	1 1 1	A summer and in the second in the other	
22. Bank service and procedure		+ + +		÷
54. The trolley and its use	1 1 1	1 1 1	: : :	:
25. The railroad and its use 26. Business organization and	THE REPORT OF THE PARTY OF THE	+ + +		÷
management	services and	: : :	the set of	
27. Buying	: : :	1 1 1	: : :	1
28. Consumer problems 29. Ordering and receiving merchan-	+++	1 1 1		
dise	: : :	: : :	: : :	:
30. Selling	1 1 1	+ + +		÷
31. Sales Organizations 32. Advertising	+++	1 1 1	a refer to the design of the local division	
33. Shipping	1 71 1	1 1 1	: : :	:
34. Cash payments 35. Personnel organization	1 1 1	1 1 1	<u></u>	
36. Sole proprietorship business	1 1 1	: : :	1 1 1	
37. Partnerships		1 1 1	1 1 1	
38. The corporation 39. Budgeting				
40. Where and how to find facts		1 1 1	1 1 1	:
41. Operation of trading concerns 42. Office activities		+ + +	1 1 1 1 1 1	
43. Stock keeping	1 1	+ + +	: : :	:
44. Billing	: : :		: : :	1
45. Paying employees 46. Handling cash		+++	$\frac{1}{1} \frac{1}{1} \frac{1}{1}$	
47. Traffic regulations		1 11		1
48. Public services	1 1 1	: : :	1 1 1	:
49. Personal accounts 50. Personal business papers		1 1 1	A real of the second	<u>.</u>
51. Co-operative institutions			a statistic Tracing concerning in the same of the local test of the same of the local test of the same	:
52. Reading and writing numbers	: : :	1 1 1	: : :	:
53. Business arithmetic	1 1 :	1 : :	: : :	

.

TOFICS, FNOSLENS, PHASES : 07 TOFICS, FNOSLENS, PHASES : 011 Degree of Desirability				P	
TOPICS, PROBLETS, PHASES tal : able : value: able i tal : able : value: able pagree of Desirability				0.0	16
55. Derrowing and logning money 1	TOPICS, PROBLEMS, PHASES			Little	
55. Derrowing and logning money 1	Degree of Desirability	987	6 5 4	3 2 1	0
65. Covernmental Aids in seving 1		1 1 1	1 1 1 1	1 1	
67. Tome investing 1 1 1 1 1 63. Travel services 1 1 1 1 1 1 54. Dise of telephone directory 1 1 1 1 1 1 64. Business of doct standards 1 1 1 1 1 1 65. Conservation of natural resources 1 1 1 1 1 1 64. Business haw 66. Conservation of natural resources 1 1 1 1 1 65. Conservation of natural resources 1		1 1 1	: : : :	1 1 1	1
28. Travel services 1		+++			
55. Use of telephone directory 1 <td< td=""><td>57. Home Investing</td><td>÷ ÷ ÷ ÷</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	57. Home Investing	÷ ÷ ÷ ÷			
60. Pusiness conduct standards 1 <td< td=""><td></td><td>1 1 1 1</td><td></td><td>11</td><td></td></td<>		1 1 1 1		11	
62. Business and the government 4	60. Business conduct standards	: : :	1 1 1	1 1 1	:
63. Cenaral welfare and business : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :		1 1 1	1 1 1	1 1 1	
64. Eusiness law 1	62. Business and the government	1 11			
65. Conserving human resources : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :		: : : :	: : :	; ; ; ;	
67. : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	65. Conservation of natural resource	s: : :	: : :	: : :	:
68. i		1 1 1	1 1 1	: : :	:
69. i		+ + +	<u> </u>		<u>.</u>
70. : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :				: : : :	
IV. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	70.	1 1 1	1 1 1	1 1 1	:
Pupil iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii	71.	: : :	: : :	: : :	:
Pupil iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii		1 1 1	1 1 1	1 1 1	<u>. </u>
1. Preview i	IV. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS				
1. Preview i	Punil	+ + +	! ! !		<u>.</u>
<pre>2. Review questions 3. Study helps 4. Problems for discussion 5. Workbooks 7. Activity projects 8. 9. 9. 1. Free publication and service 1. I I I I I I 7. Free publication and service 1. I I I I I 7. Free publication and service 1. I I I I 7. Actarances 7. Activity service 6. 1. I I I I I 7. Actarances 7. Advisory service 7. Unglazed paper 7. Unglazed paper 7. Unglazed paper 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. Economicel II Price 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II I Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II I Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II I Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II I Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II I Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II I Price 7. I I I I 7. Economicel II I 7.</pre>		such else first the maximum of the state of the local state of the sta	THE OWNER AND ADDRESS OF TAXABLE PARTY.		:
<pre>4. Problems for discussion : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :</pre>		our second of state And provided by the second	the second second second states and the second s	the fact that the second s	:
5. Workbooks i <t< td=""><td></td><td>the state of the s</td><td>State State Village Science State State</td><td>state, burning and a data for the set</td><td>1</td></t<>		the state of the s	State State Village Science State State	state, burning and a data for the set	1
6. Preview questions 1 1 1 1 1 7. Activity projects 1 1 1 1 1 8. 1 1 1 1 1 1 9. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1. Free publication and service 1 1 1 1 2. Manual 1 1 1 1 1 3. Key to exercises and problems 1 1 1 1 4. References 1 1 1 1 1 5. Advisory service 1 1 1 1 1 6. 1 1 1 1 1 1 7. MECHANICAL FEATURES 1 1 1 1 1 7. MECHANICAL FEATURES 1 1 1 1 1 9. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1. Oldssy paper 1 1 1 1 1 2. Unglezed paper 1 1 1 1		the life size the second second second	The state of the second s	THE PARTY NAME AND ADDRESS OF	<u>.</u>
7. Activity projects 1 1 1 1 1 8. 1 1 1 1 1 1 9. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1. Free publication and service 1 1 1 1 1 2. Manual 1 1 1 1 1 1 3. Key to exercises and problems 1 1 1 1 1 4. References 1 1 1 1 1 1 5. Advisory service 1 1 1 1 1 1 6. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9. MECHANICAL FEATURES 1 1 1 1 1 1 1. Glossy paper 1 1 1 1 1 1 2. Unglezed paper 1 1 1 1 1 1 3. Clear type 1 1 1 1 1 1 4. Interseting title 1 1 1	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	so which the party of the party of the local division of the local	the second se	+ + +	
9. Teacher 1. Free publication and service 2. Manual 3. Key to exercises and problems 4. References 5. Advisory service 6. V. MECHANICAL FEATURES U. MECHANICAL FEATU				1 1 1	1
Teacher I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I					1
Teacher : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	9.			COLUMN PROPERTY AND INCOME.	÷
1. Free publication and service : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	Teacher			: : :	
3. Key to exercises and problems 1 1 1 4. References 1 1 1 5. Advisory service 1 1 1 6. 1 1 1 1 7. MECHANICAL FEATURES 1 1 1 1 9. 1 1 1 1 1. Glossy paper 1 1 1 1 2. Unglazed paper 1 1 1 1 3. Clear type 1 1 1 1 4. Interesting title 1 1 1 1 6. Size of text 1 1 1 1 7. Economical in price 1 1 1 8. Well illustrated 1 1 1 9. 1 1 1 1 1. Adequate number of questions 1 1 1 3. Authors have ability and experience 1 1 1 4. Recency of publication 1 1 1 1 6. 1 1 1 1	1. Free publication and service	: : :	: : :	: : :	1
4. References 1 1 1 5. Advisory service 1 1 1 6. 1 1 1 V. MECHANICAL FEATURES 1 1 1 Quality and Make-Up 1 1 1 I. Glossy paper 1 1 1 2. Unglazed paper 1 1 1 3. Clear type 1 1 1 4. Interesting title 1 1 1 5. Impressiveness of make-up 1 1 1 6. Size of text 1 1 1 7. Beonomical in price 1 1 1 8. Well illustrated 1 1 1 9. 1 1 1 1 1. Adequate number of questions 1 1 1 2. Workbocks optional with text 1 1 1 4. Recency of publication 1 1 1 5. 1 1 1 1 6. 1 1 1 1 <td></td> <td>the second se</td> <td>and the second se</td> <td>And in case of the second second lines of the second second</td> <td>Participant and a second second</td>		the second se	and the second se	And in case of the second second lines of the second second	Participant and a second
5. Advisory service : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	4. References			and the second se	
6. IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII				division of the last day of the low of the l	:
V. MECHANICAL FEATURES Quality and Make-Up I. Glossy paper 2. Unglazad paper 3. Clear type 4. Interesting title 5. Impressiveness of make-up 6. Size of text 7. Economical in price 8. Well illustrated 9. 1. Adequate number of questions 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experimos 6. 5. 6.				and the owner will be the set of the ball the set	:
Quality and Make-Up		+ + +	+ + +	\	<u>.</u>
1. Glossy paper 2. Unglazed paper 3. Clear type 4. Interesting title 5. Impressiveness of make-up 6. Size of text 7. Economical in price 8. Well illustrated 9. 1. Adequate number of questions 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experience 4. Recency of publication	V. MECHANICAL FEATURES	1,11	: : :	1 1 1	:
1. Glossy paper 2. Unglazed paper 3. Clear type 4. Interesting title 5. Impressiveness of make-up 6. Size of text 7. Economical in price 8. Well illustrated 9. 1. Adequate number of questions 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experience 4. Recency of publication	Quality and Make ITs	1 1 1	1 1 1	1 1 1	1
<pre>2. Unglazed paper 3. Clear type 4. Interesting title 5. Impressiveness of make-up 6. Size of text 7. Economical in price 8. Well fillustrated 9. 0 ther Features 1. Adequate number of questions and exercises 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experience 4. Recency of publication 5. 6. 2. Unglazed paper 2. Interesting title 3. Authors have ability and experience 3. Interesting title 3. Interesti</pre>		<u>+ + +</u>		+ + + +	÷
3. Clear type 111 teresting title 4. Interesting title 111 teresting title 5. Impressiveness of make-up 111 teresting 6. Size of text 111 teresting 7. Economical in price 111 teresting 8. Well illustrated 111 teresting 9. 111 teresting 1. Adequate number of questions 111 teresting 2. Workbooks optional with text 111 teresting 3. Authors have ability and experience 111 teresting 4. Recency of publication 111 teresting 5. 111 teresting 6. 111 teresting	2. Unglazad papar		1 1 1	1 1 1	:
5. Impressiveness of make-up	3. Clear type	1 1 1	: : :	: : :	1
6. Size of text 7. Economical in price 8. Well illustrated 9. Other Features 1. Adequate number of questions 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experience 4. Recency of publication 5. 6.	4. Interesting title			Contraction in the second second second second	1
7. Economical in price 8. Well illustrated 9. Other Features 1. Adequate number of questions and exercises 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experience 4. Recency of publication 5. 6.	6 Size of text				
8. Well illustrated 9. Other Features 1. Adequate number of questions and exercises 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experience 4. Recency of publication 5. 6.	7. Economical in price	+ + + +			
9. Other Features 1. Adequate number of questions and exercises 2. Workbooks optional with text 3. Authors have ability and experience 4. Recency of publication 5. 6.	8. Well illustrated	1 1 1			1
Other Features Image: Search and exercises and exercises Image: Search and exercises 2. Workbooks optional with text Image: Search and experience 3. Authors have ability and experience Image: Search and experience 4. Recency of publication Image: Search and experience 5. Image: Search and experience 6. Image: Search and experience	9.			: : :	:
1. Adequate number of questions	Other Festures				
and exercises ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::		COMPANY OF THE OWNER OF TAXABLE PARTY OF TAXABLE PARTY.			
2. Workbooks optional with text : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	and exercises	: : :	: : :	CONTRACTOR ADDRESS OF TAXABLE PARTY OF TAXABLE PARTY.	On spikesons have seen and some seen and and a second second
3. Authors have ability and experience	2. Workbooks optional with text	1 1 1	: : :	: : :	:
5. 6.	3. Authors have ability and experie	1109 : :	: : :		
6.	4. Recency of publication		+ + +		
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1				: : :	:
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		: : :	: : :	: : :	:
		1 : :	1 1 1	1 1 1	:

RESULTS

The original check-list which was sent to members of the jury was arranged in the following manner:

The five main divisions were divided and subdivided into numerous items. The items were to be rated on a scale of ten points. Any item which, in the opinion of the jurors, was essential for a junior business training text would be rated 9, 8, or 7, depending upon the degree of emphasis the juror placed on this particular feature. On the other extreme, the jurors might consider an item as being undesirable for junior business training texts and give it a rating of zero.

Tables I, II, III, IV, and V show the ratings given by the jury to each item under the main headings. For example, in Table I, feature number one, "Material logically presented," was given a rating of 9 by eight jurors, a rating of 7 by two jurors, a rating of 6 by two jurors, a rating of 5 by three jurors, a rating of 3 by one juror, a rating of 2 by one juror, a rating of 1 by one juror, and 1 juror considered the feature as undesirable and gave it a rating of zero.

PRESENTATION

A study of Table I shows considerable agreement among the jury members regarding several features. For instance, twelve members considered an "Index" as a very essential feature in junior business training textbooks; only one member of the jury considered the feature of little value.

TABLE I

PRESENTATION

FEATURE	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
A. GENERAL										
1. Material lo	gically pre-									
sented	8		2	2	3		1	1	1	1
2. Unit method	presentation 9		22	4	2	1		-	10	1
3. Workbook ac	companies 1		1	2462784	3241222	152121	2		1	
4. Index	12 4 3 ns 8	1	1	2	1	2	2142		-	
5. Preface	4	1 2		7	2	1	4		1	
6. Summaries	3	2	1	8	2	2	2			
7. Illustratio	ns 8	-	1 4	4	2	ĩ				
8. Problems fo			-		-	-				
work	7	2	4	3	1	1	1			1
9. Poetic refe		~	-	32	1	1	1 8		3	4
10. Business ar				-	-	-	-		-	-
problems	and the main state of the state		4	7		3				
11. Unit vocabu	lary drill 6	4	-	5	4	31				
12. Spelling dr		451	1	6	3	-		1		
13. Penmanship	drills 1	ĩ	3	Ă	2	3	4	-	1	1
14. Job problem	a 4	-	1321	756474	4 3 2 2 5	333	2		-	-
15. Quiz progra		1	1	A	5	3	23	1	1	
16. Life situat	Contraction of the second s	*	*	-	~	~	~	-	+	
problems	10115 4114 10	1	1	4	2	1				
17. Thought pro		-	+	-	2	*				
questions	8	1	1	5	4	1				
18. Testing bus		-	-	~	-	-				
standing	8	2	2	A	2	1		1		
19. Activity pr		~	21	4 7	21	1	1	î		
The MODIFICS DI	0,9005 0		-	1	+	*	-	-		
B. AIMS IN PRESEN	TATTON OF									
MATERIAL	THE LOW OF									
1. Indirect vo	cational 6			5	A	1	1		1	24
2. Personal-us		1	1	53	4	+	-		-	
3. Evaluation	C. C. Martin Contraction (Contraction)	+	+	0	+					
services	7	3	1	5	3	1				
4. Skill maint		0	*	~	0	+				
arithmetic	anance in	0	0	7	3	2				
5. Improvement	of panmon-	6	2	'	9	2				
	or perman-		1	17	4	1	72	1		1
ship E English imp		1	T	6	A	1	0	+		-
6. English imp		T		0	4	T	6			
7. Understandi										
ness terms	10		6	3	1					

TABLE I (Continued)

PRESENTATION

	FEATURE	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
8.	Vocational guidance and										
	exploration	10	1	3	3	1	1	1			
9.	Personal understanding							214			
	and guidance	8	2	1	3	4	1	1			
10.	Give an understanding							1.11			
	of business	7	4	6	1	1			1		
11.	Develop habits, abili-							1			
	ties, and skills for use										
	in business	8	1	5	3	3					

Ten members of the jury believed "Life situations and problems" was an essential feature to include in the course; all members of the jury considered the feature desirable. "Understanding of business terms" was given the maximum rating of 9 by ten members of the jury, and all members of the jury also considered the feature desirable. Ten members of the jury also agreed that "Vocational guidance and exploration" was a very essential item for the texts, but one jury member considered this feature as of little value. The greatest amount of agreement was shown by the jury in rating the "Personal-use value" of the aims in presentation of material; fourteen members believed the feature was essential, and all of the jury believed the feature was very desirable.

There was also considerable agreement among the jury in regard to the feature "Develop habits, abilities, and skills for use in business." All twenty members of the jury considered the item desirable, with eight jurors giving it a maximum rating of 9.

The jury was also agreed, on the other extreme, that the feature "Poetic references" was either of little value or undesirable and should not be included in junior business training textbooks.

There was little agreement among the jurors, however, in the ratings given such features as "Material logically presented" and the aim of "Improvement of penmanship." Although eight members of the jury considered "Material logically presented" an essential feature, four jurors considered the item either of little value or undesirable. Two members of the jury considered "Improvement of penmanship" as an essential aim in the presentation of junior business training material, while four members of the jury felt that the item was of little value and undesirable; however, twelve jurors considered the feature more or less desirable.

The jury could not agree on the feature "Penmanship drills." One juror considered the feature essential, and one considered it undesirable; the remaining jurors distributed their values fairly equally between 9 and 0, essential and undesirable.

ILLUSTRATIONS

There was a great amoung of disagreement among the jurors as to whether illustrations were essential or of little value. It may be noted, however, that none of the six types of illustrations were considered as undesirable by any member of the jury. Evidently the jurors are agreed that illustrations are desirable although many of them are not essential.

The only feature among the illustrations that was considered as essential by a majority of the jury was "Business papers," with eleven jurors giving the item the maximum rating of 9. Not one of the jurors considered the feature of little value.

On the other hand, the only feature that was not given a maximum rating of 9 was "Colored illustrations." Six members of the jury rated the feature of little value.

TABLE II

ILLUSTRATIONS

FEATURE	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
1. Actual photographs	6	2	2	6	1	2	1			
2. Graphs	3	2	3	3	1	23	3	1	1	
3. Charts	3 2	2	3	5	2	2	4			
4. Business papers	11	1	2	3	2	1				
5. Cartoons	2	1	1	5	1	4	3	2	1	
6. Colored illustrations			1	7	1	5	2	2	2	

The jurors were very much disagreed as to the rating for the features "Graphs" and "Cartoons." Neither feature was considered undesirable, although five jurors believed "Graphs" to be of little value in junior business training textbooks. However, three jurors gave the feature a maximum rating of 9. "Cartoons" were rated of little value by six jurors and was given an essential rating by four members of the jury.

CONTENT OF TEXT

Many of the features under content of text were definitely agreed upon by the jury as being essential. However, members of the jury also show much disagreement in regard to a number of the features. Such features as "Personality and character development," "Meaning of business," "Communication," "Mail services," "Telephone service," "Thrift," "Bank service and procedure," "Buying," "Consumer problems," "Budgeting," "Where and how to find facts," "Handling cash," and "Personal accounts" were given maximum ratings of 9 by a majority of the jurors. Of these features, "Consumer problems" received the greatest number of maximum ratings, receiving fourteen ratings of 9.

The jurors were agreed that the feature "Budgeting" was essential or very desirable.

A great difference of opinion was expressed regarding including "Business law" in junior business training texts. Two jurors rated the feature as very essential, while three jurors gave it a rating of 0, or undesirable. A difference

TABLE III

CONTENT OF TEXT

	FEATURE	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
1.	Personality and character										
	development	11	1	32	4	-		1			
	Success requirements	6		2	476	21	2	15	-		
	Leisure time uses	5	1 2	-	6	1	-		1	1	
	Good manners	9	2	2	1		1	4			
э.	Occupations and vocational	10									
0	guidance	10	1	4334	2 3 2 2 1	1	1	1			
	Meaning of business Communication	11 12	1212	C	0	T	i		3		
	Business letter writing	9	2	0	20			1			
	Mail services	11	2	3	1	21	2	T			
	Telephone service	12	ĩ	4	+	1	122015041232				
	Teletypewriter	3	+	2	4	-	ñ	4			
	Telegraph service	9	2	2331245324		3	ĩ	1			
	Cable service	3	~	3	4	2	5	î		2	
	Wireless	4		1	4	2	6	1 1 1	1]
	Radiograms	4		2	5	2	4	ī	1		1
	Newspapers	6	1	4	3	3	ī		1		1
	Books and magazines	6 5	1	3	4	2	2	131	1		
	Filing	6	1	3	3	32223231	3	1	9		
9.		13	1	2	1	1	2				
0.	Investments	9	1	4	2		33				1
1.	Insurance	10		4	1	1	3				נו
2.	Bank service and procedure	12	2	4	2						
	Automobile transportation	6	1	3	2	3	1	34			
4.	The trolley and its use	1		44312	14453451212257	312	1 4 2	4		1	1
5.	The railroad and its use	6		2	7	2	2				1
6.	Business organization and										
	management	5	3	2	6				2		1
	Buying	11		4	621	1					1
	Consumer problems	14		3	1		2				
9.	Ordering and receiving mer-					-			1		
	chandise	8	1 2	5	1	2	2		1		
	Selling	7	2	3	3	1	2		1		1
	Sales organizations	3		3	3	4	3	1 2	1	1	1
	Advertising	873658		0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1004420	2142454	2233331	2	1		
	Shipping	S		3	4	4	3				
	Cash payments			3	2	5	T	~	-		81
	Personnel organization	1	1.	2	3	4	5	2	2]
0.	Sole proprietorship busi-	-	-	-		-		-		-	
-	ness	33	1	T	32	3	4	3		1	1
1.	Partnerships	3	T	T	2	4	4	3		1	

TABLE III (Continued)

CONTENT OF TEXT

	FEATURE	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
38.	The corporation	3	1	1	2	3	5	3	-	1	1
39.	Budgeting	13	1	1	4	1					
	Where and how to find facts	13		4	1	1			1		
1.	Operation of trading con-										
	cerns	2		3	3	1	3	4	2	1	1
12.		5	1	322	334	3	3214	365	211		
	Stock keeping	1		2	4	4	1	6	1		1
	Billing	1		2	3	2	4	5	1		1
	Paying employees	4	1	1	4	54221	2	4	1		1
		10		4	34423333	1					
	Traffic regulations	6	1	1	2	3	1 2 1	5		1	
	Public services	7	2		3	4	2	21			
10050.07		11	2	1	3	1		1	1		
	Personal business papers	8	4		3	2	2		1		
	Co-operative institutions	3		4	2	1	4	4	1.4	2	
52.	Reading and writing num-										
	bers	6		1 2	2 2		3	3		2	2
1. 7. A. B	Business arithmetic	7	2	2	2	1	4		1	1	
54.	Borrowing and loaning										
	money	9	2	1	1	3	3		1		
		10		21	4	2	1	1			
	Governmental aids in saving		1	1	3	4	5 22 5				
	Home investing	7	1		4	2	2	4			
	Travel services	6	1	4	3413250	42112	5	2			
		10	1	34	3	1	10	2			
212-227 C	Business conduct standards	7	1	4	2	2	1	3	1		
	Laws of society	5	2	2	3	1	5	1	1		X
	Business and government	3	2	5	2	1	3		2		
53.	General welfare and busi-	1	-			-					
	ness	3	3	1 2	2 5	3	2	33		1	-
	Business law	2		2	5	1	3	3		1	
55.	Conservation of natural			-	-	1					
	resources	4		3	3	1	6				
6.	Conserving human resources	7		2	2	1	5	1			

of opinion also existed with relation to including "Reading and writing numbers" and "Business arithmetic" in the textbooks. Seven jurors considered the first feature as essential, while the same number considered the feature as either of little value or undesirable.

The jury showed disagreement as to many items to be included in the content of junior business training textbooks. Twenty-five of the features were considered undesirable by at least one juror, and the same features were considered essential by one or more jurors. However, most of the features were considered quite desirable by the jury.

TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS

Two features show particular agreement among the jurors, namely: "Key to exercises and problems" and "References." Both of the features were considered as essential or desirable by all twenty members of the jury. Ten jurors gave the first feature the highest rating of 9; three gave it a rating of 8; one rated it 7; three gave it a score of 6; one rated it 5; and two gave it a rating of 4.

The jury disagreed as to the importance of the feature "Preview," with four giving it a rating of 9 and one giving it a rating of 0; however, most of the jurors considered the item desirable. The feature "Workbooks" was considered as desirable but not essential. Eleven members of the jury considered the teacher aid feature "Manual" as being very essential and gave it a rating of 9; on the other extreme, one

TABLE IV

TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS

	FEATURE	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	C
A .	PUPIL					-					
	1. Preview	4		1	7	2	1	3			1
	2. Review questions	5	1	3	7	3		1			
	3. Study helps	6	1	1	6	3	1	1			
	4. Problems for discussion	4566217	4	3	6			1			
	5. Workbooks	2			8	4	50 20 20	1		1	
	6. Preview questions	1		2	6	2	2	4		1]
	7. Activity projects	7	1	3	7766863	3	2	1			
3.	TEACHER										
	1. Free publication and										
	service	8	1	1	4	1	2			1	
	2. Manual	8	1	2	4	1					
	3. Key to exercises and										
	problems	10	3	1	3	1	2				
	4. References	4 5	1	4	8	2	1				
	5. Advisory service	5	-	5	505	2	1	1		1	

member of the jury gave the feature a rating of 1, of little value.

MECHANICAL FEATURES

Three features were definitely agreed upon by the jury members. For instance, fifteen jury members believed "Clear type" to be very essential in the quality and make-up of junior business training texts; all members considered the item to be desirable. Both of the features, "Authors have ability and experience" and "Recency of publication," were considered essential and given maximum ratings of 9 by fourteen members of the jury. No member of the jury gave the feature "Authors have ability and experience" a rating lower than 6. However, one juror considered "Recency of publication" a feature of little value.

The members of the jury were pretty well agreed that the feature "Glossy paper" was undesirable. "Size of text" was considered of little value by five members of the jury, while four members of the jury believed the feature to be essential.

The feature "Economical in price" was considered desirable by all twenty jurors, with seven of them giving the feature a maximum rating of 9. "Interesting title" was considered an essential feature by six jurors and of little value by three members of the jury.

MAIN DIVISIONS

A card was prepared containing only the five main headings and sent to a selected group of the jury. The main

TABLE V

MECHANICAL FEATURES

FEATURE	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2	1	0
. QUALITY AND MAKE-UP										
1. Unglazed paper	6 15 6		1	5	2	1	1	1		1
2. Clear type	15	2	1	1	1					1
 Interesting title Impressiveness of make- 					1000		3			נ
up	6	3	2	3	2	1			2	1
5. Size of text	6 4 7 9		2	5	2	1	1	1	3	
6. Economical in price	7	1	3	6	2	1				
7. Well illustrated	9	4	1	3	1	1	1		1	
. OTHER FEATURES										
1. Adequate number of ques	-							14		
tions and exercises	7	2	2	6	1	1			1	
2. Workbook optional with										
text	6	1	1	9		3				
3. Authors have ability										
and experience	14	4		2						
4. Recency of publication	14	1	1	2			1			

headings were to be weighted on the basis of one thousand points. Ten of the jurors returned the cards with the main division weights assigned. Table VI shows the average weight given each division by the jury and an arbitrarily assigned value. The value was assigned to facilitate easier handling of each of the features under the divisions.

	MAIN DIVISIONS	AVERAGE	ASS IGNED VALUE
1.	Presentation(a) general (b) aims in presentation	180	200
II.	Illustrationstypes and quality	115	100
III.	Content of Text	450	450
IV.	Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	150
٧.	Mechanical Features quality and make-up of texts, etc.	105	100
	TOTAL	1000	1000

TABLE VI

TABULATION OF JURY RATINGS

After the ratings of the features by the twenty jury members had been compiled, it was then necessary to compute the mean raw score for each feature. This was accomplished by multiplying the number of individual judgments in each column by the score allotted to that column and dividing the sum of all columns by 20, or the number of judgments. In some instances every feature was not rated by all twenty members of the jury. In such cases the total of individual judgments times column scores would be divided by the number of judgments given for each feature. In no cases were there less than eighteen judgments given for any feature. The procedure for calculating this weighted average may be illustrated as follows:

FORM II

TOTAL WEIGHTED AVERAGE FOR ITEM "MATERIAL LOGICALLY PRESENTED" AND THE INDIVIDUAL SCORES GIVEN THIS FEATURE

FEATURE					Desir- : able :							Wt. Ave.	
	:	9	88	7:	6	5	4:	3	2	1:	0	:	
Material logi- cally presente	ed	8	0	2	2	3	0	1	1	1	0		6.2

Under the column headed "Essential," eight of the jurors believed "Material logically presented" was a very essential feature and gave it a rating of 9; two considered it essential to a lesser degree and gave it a rating of 7; two of the jurors felt that the feature was so desirable that they gave it a rating of 6; three of the jurors believed the feature was desirable and gave it a rank of 5. One of the jury members decided the feature was of value but not desirable and gave it a rating of 3; one juror also thought the feature was of little value giving it a rank of 2; and one believed the item was of such little value that a value of 1 was given. None of the jurors believed "Material logically presented" was undesirable, therefore no zero ratings were given.

The weighted average of these ratings is obtained by multiplying the number of individual judgments in each colummby the allotted score for that column and dividing the sum of all columns by the number of individual judgments. The weighted average in the example (Form II) is 6.2, or, according to the combined judgments of the jury, the feature is considered very desirable.

The same procedure was followed in obtaining the weighted average for each of the 126 items in the check-list. The data are shown in the appendix.

All features receiving a weighted average of less than 4.0 were arbitrarily excluded from the check-list. This weight would indicate that the jury believed the feature was of little value in a textbook for junior business training. Only two features received a weighted average of less than 4.0, and they were omitted from the finished score card. They were "Glossy paper" with a weighted average of 2.9, and "Poetic references" with a weighted average of 2.5. The completed score card, therefore, contains 124 features.

After the weighted average had been determined for each feature, the next procedure was to determine the 32

會批1.4號會調1

LIBRARY

NOV 27 1942 relative weight of each item in relation to the total points allotted by the jury to each of the main divisions. The following formula was used:

 $\frac{MW_{f}}{\xi MW_{D}} \cdot MP_{D} \qquad \begin{array}{l} (M = Mean, W = Weight, f = Feature) \\ (P = Points, D = Main Division) \end{array}$

Substituting the figures of the illustration on page 32 to show the operation of this formula, the calculation would be as follows:

 $\frac{6.2}{192}$ x 200 = 6.46

The figure 6.2 represents the weighted average of the feature "Material logically presented." The denominator, 192, represents the sum of the weighted averages under the main division, "Presentation." The figure 200 represents the weight allotment given the main division by the jury. The result expresses the maximum score allotted by the jury to this particular item which, in this case, is 6.

Form III shows the completed score card. The column of figures to the right of the features column indicates the maximum scores allotted by the jury to each feature in accordance with the method illustrated above.

FORM III

SCORE CARD FOR RATING

JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOKS

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

Name of Textbook Rated:

I.

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
A. PRESENTATIO	N	
. General		
1. Material logically presented	7	
2. Unit method of presentation	7	
3. Workbook accompanies	5	
4. Index	8	
5. Preface	6	
6. Summaries	6	
7. Illustrations	8	
8. Problems for written work	7	
9. Business arithmetic problems	7	
10. Unit vocabulary drill	7	1
11. Spelling drills	7	9) (C) (C) (C)
12. Penmanship drills	5	
13. Job problems	6	
14, Quiz programs	5	
15. Life situations and problems	8	

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	
17. Testing business understanding	7	
18. Activity projects	7	
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	6
2. Personal-use value	9	2
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	-
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	
6. English improvement	7	
7. Understanding of business terms	8	
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	
10. Give an understanding of business	8	
11. Develop habits, abilities, and skill for use in business	.s 8	
TOTAL SCORE	200	
B. ILLUSTRATIONS	Sector (1)	
1. Actual photographs	20	
2. Graphs	16	_
3. Charts	16	1 Main Too
4. Business papers	22	5003.90
5. Cartoons	14	
6. Colored illustrations	12	
TOTAL SCORE	100	

	FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
1.	Personality and character development	8	
2.	Success requirements	7	
3.	Leisure time uses	6	_
4.	Good manners	7	9 <u>2</u>
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	
6.	Meaning of business	8	2. <u>110</u> 2013
7.	Communication	9	_
8.	Business letter writing	8	
9.	Mail services	8	_
10.	Telephone service	8	_
11.	Teletypewriter	5	_
12.	Telegraph service	8	_
13.	Cable service	6	
14.	Wireless	6	
15.	Radiograms	6	
16.	Newspapers	7	
17.	Books and magazines	7	
18.	Filing	7	
19.	Thrift	8	_
20.	Investments	8	
21.	Insurance	8	10 10 M
22.	Bank service and procedure	9	
23.	Automobile transportation	7	
24.	The trolley and its use	4	
25.	The railroad and its use	7	
26,	Business organization and management	7	
27.	Buying	8	
			CONTRACTOR OF MALE

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
28. Consumer problems	9	
29. Ordering and receiving merchandise	7	
30. Selling	7	
31. Sales organizations	6	
32. Advertising	7	
33. Shipping	7	
34. Cash jayments	8	
35. Personnel organization	5	
36. Sole proprietorship business	5	
37. Partnerships	5	
38. The corporation	5	
39. Budgeting	9	
40. Where and how to find facts	8	
41. Operation of trading concerns	5	-
42. Office activities	6	
43. Stock keeping	5	
44. Billing	5	
45. Paying employees	6	
46. Handling cash	8	
47. Traffic regulations	6	
48. Public services	7	
49. Personal accounts	8	
50. Personal business papers	8	
51. Co-operative institutions	õ	
52. Reading and writing numbers	5	1
53. Business arithmetic	7	
54. Borrowing and loaning money	7	
55. Installment buying	8	-

FEATURES	SCORE	ALLOTTED
56. Governmental aids in saving	7	
57. Home investing	7	
58. Travel services	7	
59. Use of telephone directory	8	
60. Business conduct standards	7	191921A (6)*
61. Laws of society	7	
62. Business and government	6	-
63. General welfare and business	5	
64. Business law	4	
65. Conservation of natural resources	6	
66. Conserving human resources	7	
TOTAL SCORE	450	
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS		
I. Pupil		
l. Preview	11	
2. Review questions	13	
3. Study helps	13	
4. Problems for discussion	14	
5. Workbooks	10	
6. Preview questions	9	
7. Activity projects	13	
II. Teacher		
1. Free publication and service	13	-
2. Manual	14	
3. Key to exercises and problems	15	
4. References	13	
5. Advisory service	12	
TOTAL SCORE	150	

MAXIMUM SCORE

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
. 16	E. MECHANICAL FEATURES	The Part of the	
I.	Quality and Make-up	-	
	1. Unglazed paper	8	
	2. Clear type	11	
	3. Interesting title	8	
	4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	LI MEN
	5. Size of text	7	CONTRACTOR N
	6. Economical in price	9	
	7. Well illustrated	9	
II.	Gcher Features		
	1. Adequate number of questions and exercises	9	
	2. Workbook optional with text	9	
	3. Authors have ability and experience	11	
	4. Recency of publication	11	<u></u>
	TOTAL SCORE	100	
A .	Presentation	200	
в.	Illustrations	100	
c.	Content of Text	450	
D.	Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	
E.	Mechanical Features	100	ATTRACT
	GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	

CHAPTER III

THE SCORE CARD AND ITS APPLICATION TO THE EVALUATION OF JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOKS

The purpose of this chapter is to apply the score card developed in Chapter II to the rating of eight recent textbooks in Junior Business Training.

As has been previously stated, the purpose of this study is to develop a score card; its application to the textbooks is to show how the score card may function. The rating allotted each text expresses the viewpoint of the rating committee and does not necessarily signify the value of each book in every situation. Since a textbook must fit the local situation, the score card, to be of real value, should be applied by those who wish to use the text.

The rating of textbooks in this study was done by a committee of three experienced commercial teachers, no two of whom were familiar with any one of the texts rated. It is believed that no preference for a particular text is shown.

Each book is referred to by alphabetical letters instead of the title. The following tables show the allotted score given for each feature of the score card and the total scores for all eight texts. The individual textbook ratings may be found in the appendix.

PRESENTATION

Textbooks A, B, E, and H were given maximum ratings of 7 points for "Material logically presented"; the other four texts rated one or two points lower.

Textbook H had no accompanying workbook and was given a rating of zero on the feature, "Workbook accompanies."

"Summaries" were not given in textbooks D and E; they were rated zero on the feature.

"Penmanship drills" were given in only three textbooks, D. E, and H, therefore they were the only ones receiving ratings of five, the maximum score, on that feature.

All eight textbooks were rated high on the "Personaluse value" aim in presentation of material, with textbooks F and H receiving maximum ratings of nine points.

The total maximum score for Presentation is 200 points. The highest score given was 190 points, being given to textbook H. The poorest scores were 142, 143, and 144, given to textbooks B, A, and F, respectively.

TABLE VII

PRESENTATION

Rating of Eight Junior Business Training Textbooks

			Pos-			xtb	ook	Scores			
	Te	xtbook Features	sible	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	H
I.	Gene	ral		1.71							
	1.	Material logically presented	7	7	7	6	5	6	7	6	7
	2.	Unit method of pre- sentation	7	6	7	7	7	7	7	5	7
	3.	Workbook accompanies	5	5	5	4	5	5	5	5	
	4.	Index	8	8	7	8	8	8	8	7	8

TABLE VII (Continued)

		I	Pos-		Te	xtb	ook	Sc	ore	S	
	Ter	xtbook Features	sible	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	H
	5.	Preface	6	6	6	6	5	6	6	6	6
	6.	Summaries	6	2	2	5	4			3	6
	7.	Illustrations	8	6	5	6	7	5	8	6	8
	8.	Problems for written work	7	5	5	7	6	7	6	6	7
	9.	Business arithmetic problems	7	1	1	7	6	7	7	6	7
	10.	Unit vocabulary drill	1 7	5	7	7	7	7	7	7	7
	11.	Spelling drills	7	6	6	4	7	7		3	7
	12.	Penmanship drills	5	15			5	5			5
	13.	Job problems	6	3	3	5	4	6	4	4	6
	14.	Quiz programs	5	2	2	3	3	4		3	5
	15.	Life situations and problems	8	4	4	5	6	8	6	6	8
	16.	Thought problems and questions	7	6	7	7	6	7	6	7	7
	17.	Testing business unde standing	er- 7	4	6	7	6	7	6	7	7
	18.	Activity projects	7	7	3	7	6	4	7	7	7
II .		s in presentation of erial									
	1.	Indirect vocational	6	2	5	5	5	4	5	5	5
	2.	Personal-use value	9	8	8	8	7	6	9	7	9
	3.	Evaluation of goods and services	7	7	7	7	6	5	6	5	7
	4.	Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	1	2	7	6	6	7	6	6
	5.	Improvement of pen- manship	5	2	2		5	5		1	5

TABLE VII (Continued).

		Pos-		Te	xtb	ook	Se	ore	S	
Ter	tbook Features	sible	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	H
6.	English improvement	7	6	4	5	5	5		6	7
7.	Understanding of bus ness terms	si- 8	3	6	7	7	8	8	7	8
8.	Vocational guidance and exploration	8	8	5	5	7	8	6	6	7
9.	Personal understanding and guidance	- 7	7	7	2	6	6		5	6
10.	Give an understandin of business	ng 8	7	6	7	8	8	8	6	8
11.	Develop habits, abit ties, and skills for use in business		8	6	6	6	8	5	5	7
	Total Score	200	143	1.42	.60 1	71	75	-1	53	.90

ILLUSTRATIONS

Only one textbook, H, was given a perfect rating of 20 points on "Actual photographs."

"Graphs" were used in only four textbooks, and no text was given a maximum score on the feature.

It was believed that three of the texts, A, B, and H, were outstanding in "Cartoons," and a maximum rating of 14 points was given the feature in each text.

The perfect score for the main division, "Illustrations," is 100 points. The highest score given was 70, textbooks B and D receiving this rating. The lowest score of 48 was given to textbook A.

Table VIII shows the scores allotted the eight textbooks for the division "Illustrations."

TABLE VIII

ILLUSTRATIONS

	A COMMAN AND INC.	Pos-		T		bool	k S	core	35	
	Textbook Features	sible	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	H
1.	Actual photographs	20	12	14	6	16	10	15	18	20
2.	Graphs	16	10	12	10				10	
3.	Charts	16	12	12	10	16	14	14	8	16
4.	Business papers	22		18	20	20	20	20	20	10
5.	Cartoons	14	14	14		8	10		4	14
6.	Colored illustrations	12			4	10		5	8	
			-	-	-	-			-	
	Total Score	100	48	70	50	70	54	54	68	60

Rating of Eight Junior Business Training Textbooks

CONTENT OF TEXT

Only textbook F did not provide for "Leisure time uses" and was given a zero rating by members of the committee.

The feature, "Communication" was given a maximum rating of 9 in six of the eight textbooks. However, textbook A received a rating of zero on the feature.

"Newspapers" and "Books and magazines" were two of the features that received very low ratings in most of the textbooks.

Seven of the textbooks were felt to have sufficient material on "Insurance" and were given maximum ratings of 8 on the feature. Textbook A omitted the item entirely and was given a rating of zero. "Budgeting" and "Handling Cash" were other features that were given maximum ratings in seven of the eight textbooks. Textbook A was also lacking both features.

All of the textbooks contained somewhat adequate provision for "Business conduct standards," and the feature was given a maximum rating in textbooks A, B, G, and H.

Textbook H secured the highest number of points in this main division as the following table shows, receiving 410 points out of a possible 450. Textbook A, which contained only twelve of the sixty-six features in this main division, received the remarkably low score of 74, which was less than one-fourth the score of the next lowest textbook.

TABLE IX

CONTENT OF TEXT

Rating of Eight Junior Business Training Textbooks

		Pos-		Te	xtb	ook	Sc	ore	S	
	Textbook Features	sible	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	H
1.	Personality and character development	8	8	8	2	6	6	8	5	8
2.	Success requirements	7	7	7	5	5	7	6	5	6
3.	Leisure time uses	6	6	6	2	2	6		3	5
4.	Good manners	7	7	7	4	4	6	6	4	7
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	7	6	4	6	8	8	5	7
6.	Meaning of business	8	7	6	7	8	8	8	8	8
7.	Communication	9		8	9	9	9	9	9	9
в.	Business letter writing	8		8	2	8	8	7	8	8

	1	08-		Te	xtb	ook	Scores				
	Textbook Features	sible	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	H	
9.	Mail services	8		7	8	8	8	8	7	8	
10.	Telephone service	8		7	8	8	8	8	8	8	
11.	Teletypewriter	5		5		5	5	5	1	5	
12.	Telegraph service	8		7	7	8	8	8	8	8	
13.	Cable service	6		6	6	6	6	6	3	6	
14.	Wireless	6		1	2	3	6	6	1	4	
15.	Radiograms	6		6	6	6	6	6	3	6	
16.	Newspapers	7				3		7	2	7	
17.	Books and magazines	7				3		7	2	6	
18.	Filing	7			7	7	7	7	7	7	
19.	Thrift	8		8	7	8	8	8	8	8	
20.	Investments	8		6	7	8	8	8	8	8	
21.	Insurance	8		8	8	8	8	8	8	8	
22.	Bank service and procedure	9		8	8	9	9	9	9	9	
23.	Automobile transportation	7		6	7	6	7	7	7	7	
24.	The trolley and its use	4						4	2	4	
25.	The railroad and its use	7		6	6	6	7	7	7	7	
26.	Business organization and management	7		4	7	6	7	7	6	7	
27.	Buying	8		8	8	7	8	6	7	8	
28.	Consumer problems	9	4	9	8	3	7	7	7	8	
29.	Ordering and receiving men chandise	- 7		4	7	6		7	6	6	
30.	Selling	7		3	7	7		7	5	7	
31.	Sales organizations	6		2	6	5		6	5	6	

TABLE IX (Continued)

		Pos-		Te	xtb	ook	Scores			
	Textbook Features	sible	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	H
32.	Advertising	7		5		6		7	6	7
33.	Shipping	7		6	7	6	7	7	5	7
34.	Cash payments	8		6	7	8	8	8	7	8
35.	Personnel organization	5		3	4	3		5	3	5
36.	Sole proprietorship bus ness	i- 5			4	3		5	3	5
37.	Partnerships	5			4	3		5	3	5
38.	The corporation	5			4	3		5	4	5
39.	Budgeting	9		9	9	9	9	9	9	9
40.	Where and how to find facts	8			2	7	6	4-	7	8
41.	Operation of trading co cerns	n- 5		2	5	4		4	3	5
42.	Office activities	6		3	6	5	5	5	5	6
43.	Stock keeping	5		1	5	5	5	5	4	
44.	Billing	5			5	4	4	5		
45.	Paying employees	6			6	5			3	
46.	Handling cash	8		8	8	8	8	8	8	8
47.	Traffic regulations	6		6	2	6	2	6	5	3
48.	Public services	7	5	7	2	6	5	6	5	7
49.	Personal accounts	8		8	6	8	8	8	7	8
50.	Personal business paper	s 8		6	5	6	8	6	6	6
51.	Co-operative institutio	ns 5		3		3	5	3	3	5
52.	Reading and writing num bers	- 5		1	3	5	5	5	5	5
53.	Business arithmetic	7		3	5	7	7	6	6	7

TABLE IX (Continued)

		Pos-		Te	xtb	ook	Se	ore	s	
	Textbook Features	sible	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	H
54.	Borrowing and loaning money	7		5	6	7	5	6	6	7
55.	Installment buying	8		6	8	7	6	8	6	8
56.	Governmental aids in sav	7		6		6			6	6
57.	Home investing	7		5		5	5	5	6	5
58.	Travel services	7		7	6	7	7	7	7	7
59.	Use of telephone direc- tory	8		8	8	8	8	8	8	7
60.	Business conduct standar	ds7	7	7	5	5	5	5	7	7
61.	Laws of society	7	7	5	2	6	6		6	7
62.	Business and government	6		3	1	6	1	6	5	6
63.	General welfare and business	- 5	4		1	3	3	5	5	5
64.	Business law	4		3		4			2	
65.	Conservation of natural resources	6		2		6			4	6
66.	Conserving human resource	es7	5	5	3	7	5	6	4	5
	Total Score	450	74	306	i04	3	28	3	560	10

TABLE IX (Continued)

TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS

Members of the rating committee found the features, "Review questions," "Problems for discussion," and "Free publication and service," adequate for all eight textbooks, and maximum or near maximum ratings were given the features in all texts. Textbooks A, B, and H were given maximum ratings of 9 points for "Preview questions." The feature was entirely lacking in textbooks C, E, and F, and each text was given a rating of zero.

All of the textbooks were supplemented with a "Manual," but to only one, textbook A, was a maximum rating of 14 points given for the feature.

Textbook G received the highest score in this division, 136 out of a possible 150 points. Textbook H, which received the highest rating in the preceding main division, "Content of Text," received the lowest rating in "Teacher and Pupil Aids" with a rating of 92 points. Table X shows the results for all of the textbooks.

TABLE X

TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS

Rating of Eight Junior Business Training Textbooks

		Pos-			Textbook			ore	s	
	Textbook Features	sible	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	H
I.	Pupil			1.11						
	1. Preview	11	10	10	5	6		4	8	10
	2. Review questions	13	13	12	10	13	13	12	13	12
	3. Study helps	13	11	12	10	13	12	9	13	11
	4. Problems for discussi	lon14	14	14	12	14	14	14	13	14
	5. Workbooks	10	8	9	7	10	10	10	10	
	6. Preview questions	9	9	9		3			2	9
	7. Activity projects	13	13	7	13	12	11	10	13	12

		Pos-		T	axth	lood	c Sc	ore	as	
	Textbook Features	sible	A			D	E		G	H
11.	Teacher		.0							
	1. Free publication and service	13	11	10	10	13	10	10	12	10
	2. Manual	14	14	12	12	12	12	12	13	6
	3. Key to exercises and problems	15	10	10	10	12	15	10	15	
	4. References	13	5	9	8	10	6	13	12	
	5. Advisory service	12	10	10	8	12	8	8	12	8
	TOTAL SCORE	150	128	124	105	130	111	112	136	92

TABLE X (Continued)

MECHANICAL FEATURES

The textbooks received a fairly even rating on most features in this division. Seven of the eight textbooks received perfect ratings on "Unglazed paper," "Clear type," "Adequate number of questions and exercises," and "Workbook optional with text."

The maximum total score, as shown in Table XI, is 100 points. Textbooks D, F, and G received the highest ratings, with 97, 95, and 94 points, respectively. The lowest rating, 81 points, was given to textbook C.

TABLE XI

MECHANICAL FEATURES

Rating of Eight Junior Business Training Textbooks

	and the second second second second	Pos-		T	extl	000	s Se	core	38	
	Textbook Features	sible	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	E
. Qu	ality and Make-up	-0.151	20			34			1	-
1.	Unglazed paper	8	8	8	7	8	8	8	8	ε
2.	Clear type	11	11	11	8	11	11	11	11	11
3.	Interesting title	8	8	8	8	8	4	7	6	(
4.	Impressiveness of malup	ke- 8	2	8	6	8	7	7	8	7
5.	Size of text	7	5	7	5	7	7	7	7	1
6.	Economical in price	9	7	8	7	9	9	9	9	\$
7.	Well illustrated	9	6	6	7	9	7	8	8	\$
. Ot	her Features									
1.	Adequate number of qu tions and exercises	ues- 9	9	9	9	9	9	8	9	9
2.	Workbook optional wit text	th 9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	
3.	Authors have ability experience	and 11	10	10	9	11	11	10	10	13
4.	Recency of publication	on 11	11	6	6	8	6	10	10	1:
	Total Score	100	86	90	81	97	88	94	05	9

TOTAL SCORES ALLOTTED TO TEXTBOOKS

Textbook H was rated highest with a total score of 853. The text was particularly high in "Content of Text" but rated low on "Teacher and Pupil Aids." Textbook D was rated second with a total score of 849, having received no total rating lower than third on any main division. The text also received first ranking in "Mechanical Features" and "Illustrations."

Third in total score was textbook G with 812 points. Textbook G was particularly strong in "Teacher and Pupil Aids" and "Mechanical Features."

Textbook F was fourth in the ranking with a total score of 795, having been ranked rather low in "Presentation" and "Teacher and Pupil Aids."

Fifth rating was given to textbook E. This text received a total rating of 756 points, although it ranked second in "Presentation."

Weakness in "Presentation" and "Content of Text" caused textbook B to receive sixth rating, with a total of 732 points.

Textbook C was not particularly high in any division and ranked lowest in "Mechanical Features." The text received a total score of 700 points and seventh place in the rankings.

Last place in the rankings was given to textbook A with a total score of 479 out of 1000 points. The textbook was noticeably weak in "Illustrations" and "Content of Text." The material covered in the text was adequately handled but was not of sufficient scope to be given a high rating. Table XII shows the rating of each textbook for each single division and for the total of all divisions.

TABLE XII

TOTAL POINTS ALLOTTED TO EACH MAIN DIVISION

AND TO EACH JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOK

		Ma	ain Divi	sions		Total
Textbooks	I	II	III	IA	V	Points
MAXIMUM SCORE	200	100	450	150	100	1000
fextbook A	143	48	74	128	86	479
Textbook B	142	70	306	124	90	732
Textbook C	160	50	304	105	81	700
Textbook D	171	70	381	130	97	849
fextbook E	175	54	328	111	88	756
Textbook F	144	54	391	112	94	795
Textbook G	153	68	360	136	95	812
Textbook H	190	60	410	92	91	853

CHAPTER IV SUMMARY

Eight textbooks were obtained as a preliminary step in preparing a rating scale for the evaluating of junior business training textbooks. Only those texts which have been published, new or revised editions, within the past six years were used.

After a study of the available literature in junior business training and textbook analysis, a check-list of one hundred twenty-eight items was prepared. The items were those which might be considered as criteria for selecting a junior business training textbook.

A jury of twenty experienced commercial teachers was selected through the aid of the various publishing companies and the Business Education Department of Oklahoma Agricultural and Mechanical College. The check-list was then sent to this jury for their evaluation of the items in relation to the selection of a junior business training text. Each item was to be given a numerical score in accordance with the following scale: Essential features 7, 8, or 9 points; desirable features 4, 5, or 6; features of little value 1, 2, or 3 points; and undesirable features 0 points.

The jury was then asked to determine the relative value of each of the five main divisions under which the 128 items were classified, on the basis of 100 points.

All items were classified under the following main headings: I. Presentation

II. Illustrations

III. Content of Text

IV. Teacher and Pupil Aids

V. Mechanical Features

Tabulation and computation of the returns from the questionnaires resulted in the elimination of two features which, according to the jury, were of little value. The score card itself was then devised, assigning values to each of the 126 remaining items in accordance with the average weight of each item in relation to the total value of each main division under which the item was classified as shown by the following formula:

 $\frac{MW_{f}}{\xi MW_{D}} \cdot MP_{D}$ (M = Mean, W = Weight, f = Feature, P = Points, D = Main Division)

To illustrate the application of the score card, a committee of three teachers, none of whom was a member of the jury, applied the score card to eight junior business training texts in accordance with the criteria set up by the jury.

As has been stated previously, the selection of textbooks is of vital importance to every administrator and teacher. As objective a method as possible is needed in selecting the texts. No score card can be devised that will automatically weigh a textbook, but it will provide an objective basis for the evaluation of a text.

The values allotted to the texts by the committee of

three teachers would undoubtedly have been different if the texts had been rated by other teachers. The score card merely serves as an objective basis and to be most effective should be applied to the junior business training textbooks by those teachers and administrators who plan to use the books.

APPENDIX

October 26, 1941

Gentlemen:

As a research study in Business Education, I am making a score card for the rating of junior business training textbooks. I should like to have your cooperation in order to make the study as comprehensive as possible.

May I have sample copies of the junior business training, or everyday business, text and teachers' manual which you publish, together with descriptive advertising materials about the text. I shall be glad to return these materials upon the completion of the study.

Since the purpose of my thesis study is to make an evaluation of the different junior business training textbooks, I should like to have the opinion of other teachers as to the criteria for judging a text.

As an added courtesy, will you please list on the enclosed form the names and addresses of five successful high school junior business training teachers who are using your text and materials as a basis for their teaching. These teachers will be asked to serve as part of a jury in selecting the criteria.

If you desire, I shall send you a report on the findings of the study.

Very truly yours,

J. A. Kaufman

PUI	BLISHER:
NAI	ME OF TEXT:
	PHORS:
	Teachers now using your high school junior business training materials:
1.	Name:
	Position:
1.21	Address:
2.	Name :
	Position:
	Address:
3.	Name:
	Position:
	Address:
4.	Name:
	Position:
	Address:
5.	Name :
	Position:
	Address:

December 9, 1941

Dear :

Your name has been suggested to me by the Publishing Company as a superior teacher of junior business training.

I am requesting the aid of a number of successful junior business training teachers to serve as a jury in selecting criteria which may be used to evaluate junior business training textbooks.

The information I am attempting to collect should be of value, and I believe that you will receive much benefit from the study. The request I am making does not require much of your time. Your opinion may be expressed merely by checking the form which I shall provide.

If you are willing to participate in this study, please express your intentions on the enclosed post card.

The study will be completed next summer, and I shall be glad to send you a report of the findings.

Your cooperation in completing the study will be greatly appreciated.

Sincerely yours,

J. A. Kaufman

March 7, 1942

Dear	

Enclosed is the check-list for the evaluation of Junior Business Training textbooks.

As you have already indicated your willingness to serve as a member of the jury in selecting these criteria, will you please check each item to the best of your ability and return the check-list to me at your earliest convenience in the enclosed stamped, self-addressed envelope. You are at liberty to add any topics, problems, or phases that you see fit to add.

Please accept my sincere appreciation for your cooperation in making this study possible. I will send you a copy of the final results of the study upon its completion.

Sincerely yours,

J. A. Kaufman

WEIGHTED AVERAGE FOR EACH FEATURE OF THE CHECK-LIST

FE	ATURE	WEIGHTED AVERAGE
A. GENEI	RAL	
1.	Material logically presented	6.2
2.	Unit method of presentation	7.0
3.	Workbook accompanies	4.8
4.	Index	7.5
5.	Preface	5.6
6.	Summaries	6.1
7.	Illustrations	7.3
8.	Problems for written work	6.8
9.	Poetic references	2.5
10.	Business arithmetic problems	6.8
11.	Unit vocabulary drill	7.0
12.	Spelling drills	6.7
13.	Penmanship drills	4.8
14.	Job problems	6.0
15.	Quiz programs	4.8
16.	Life situations and problems	7.5
17.	Thought problems	7.0
18.	Testing business understanding	7.1
19.	Activity projects	6.7
B. AIMS	IN PRESENTATION OF MATERIAL	
1.	Indirect vocational	6.2
2.	Personal-use value	8.2
3.	Evaluation of goods and services	7.1
4.	Skill maintenance in arithmetic	6.5

FEATURE	WEIGHTED AVERAGE
5. Improvement of penmanship	5.1
6. English improvement	6.4
7. Understanding of business terms	7.7
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	1 7.4
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7.0
10. Give an understanding of business	7.3
11. Develop habits, abilities, and skil for use in business	11s 7.4
TOTAL	192.0
B. ILLUSTRATIONS	
1. Actual photographs	6.8
2. Graphs	5.5
3. Charts	5.7
4. Business papers	7.6
5. Cartoons	4.8
6. Colored illustrations	4.3
TOTAL	34.7
C. CONTENT OF TEXT	
1. Personality and character development	7.7
2. Success requirements	6.5
3. Leisure time uses	5.6
4. Good manners	7.0
5. Occupations and vocational guidance	7.5
6. Mean of business	7.7
7. Communication	8.0
8. Business letter writing	7.3
9. Mail services	7.7

	FEATURE	WEIGHTED AVERAGE
10.	Telephone service	7.8
11.	Teletypewriter	5.0
12.	Telegraph service	7.3
13.	Cable service	5.3
14.	Wireless	5.3
15.	Radiograms	5.5
16.	Newspapers	6.8
17.	Books and magazines	6.2
18.	Filing	6.5
19.	Thrift	7.9
20.	Investments	7.0
21.	Insurance	7.0
22.	Bank service and procedure	8.2
23.	Automobile transportation	6.4
24.	The trolley and its use	4.2
25.	The railroad and its use	6.4
26.	Business organization and management	6.1
27.	Buying	7.5
28.	Consumer problems	8.0
29.	Ordering and receiving merchandise	7.0
30.	Selling	6.6
31.	Sales organizations	5.2
32.	Advertising	6.1
33.	Shipping	6.1
34.	Cash payments	7.2
35.	Personnel organization	4.5

FEATURE	WEIGHTED AVERAGE
36. Sole proprietorship business	5.0
37. Partnerships	5.0
38. The corporation	5.0
39. Budgeting	8.0
40. Where and how to find facts	7.9
1. Operation of trading concerns	4.5
42. Office activities	6.0
43. Stock keeping	4.5
44. Billing	4.6
45. Paying employees	5.3
46. Handling cash	7.7
47. Traffic regulations	5.8
48. Public services	6.5
49. Personal accounts	7.6
50. Personal business papers	7.3
51. Co-operative institutions	5.1
52. Reading and writing numbers	5.0
53. Business arithmetic	6.4
54. Borrowing and loaning money	6.9
55. Installment buying	7.2
56. Governmental aids in saving	6.8
57. Home investing	6.2
58. Travel services	6.3
59. Use of telephone directory	7.4
30. Business conduct standards	6.7
31. Laws of society	6.4

FEATURE	WEIGHTED AVERAGE
32. Business and government	5.8
33. General welfare and business	5.1
54. Business law	4.4
55. Conservation of natural resources	5.2
6. Conserving human resources	6.1
TOTAL	419.8
D. TEACHER AND PUP	IL AIDS
A. PUPIL	
1. Preview	5.7
2. Review questions	6.7
3. Study helps	6.7
4. Problems for discussion	7.3
5. Workbooks	5.3
6. Preview questions	4.7
7. Activity projects	6.8
B. TEACHER	
1. Free publication and service	6.9
2. Manual	7.5
3. Key to exercises and problem	ns 7.6
4. References	6.7
5. Advisory service	6.4
TOTAL	78.2
E. MECHANICAL FEA	TURES
A. QUALITY AND MAKE-UP	
1. Glossy paper	2.9

2. Unglazed paper 6.1

	FEATURE	WEIGHTED AVERAGE
	3. Clear type	8.4
	4. Interesting title	6.3
8	5. Impressiveness of make-up	6.3
	6. Size of text	5.4
	7. Economical in price	7.1
	8. Well illustrated	7.4
в.	OTHER FEATURES	
	1. Adequate number of questions and exercises	6.9
	2. Workbook optional with text	6.7
	3. Authors have ability and experienc	e 8.5
	4. Recency of publication	8.2
	TOTAL	77.3

LA SU DARK OOI

B

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

	Name of Textbook Rated: Textbook A			
×	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED	
	A. PRESENTATION			
. Ge	neral			
l.	Material logically presented	7	7_	
2.	Unit method of presentation	7	7_	
3.	Workbook accompanies	5	_5_	
4.	Index	8	_8	
5.	Preface	6	-6-	
6.	Summaries	6	2	
7.	Illustrations	8	_6_	
8.	Problems for written work	7	5_	
9.	Business arithmetic problems	7	1	
10.	Unit vocabulary drill	7	_5	
11.	Spelling drills	7	-6	
12.	Penmanship drills	5		
13.	Job problems	6	3	
14.	Quiz programs	5	2	
15.	Life situations and problems	8	-	

I.

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	6
17. Testing business understanding	7	4
18. Activity projects	7	_7_
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	_2_
2. Personal-use value	9	8
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	7
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	1
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	2
6. English improvement	7	6
7. Understanding of business terms	8	3
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	8
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	7_
10. Give an understanding of business	8	7
ll. Develop habits, abilities, and skill for use in business	ls 8	8
TOTAL SCORE	200	143
B. ILLUSTRATIONS		
1. Actual photographs	20	12
2. Graphs	16	10
3. Charts	1.6	12
4. Business papers	22	-
5. Cartoons	14	14
6. Colored illustrations	12	_
TOTAL SCORE	100	48

	FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
1.	Personality and character development	8	8
2.	Success requirements	7	7
3.	Leisure time uses	6	6
4.	Good manners	7	7_
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	7_
6.	Meaning of business	8	7
7.	Communication	9	
8.	Business letter writing	8	
9.	Mail services	8	
10.	Telephone service	8	
11.	Teletypewriter	5	
12.	Telegraph service	8	_
13.	Cable service	6	
14.	Wireless	6	
15.	Radiograms	6	_
16.	Newspapers	7	-
17.	Books and magazines	7	
18.	Filing	7	
19.	Thrift	8 .	-
20.	Investments	8	_
21.	Insurance	8	
22.	Bank service and procedure	9	
23.	Automobile transportation	7	
24.	The trolley and its use	4	-
25.	The railroad and its use	7	
26.	Business organization and management	7	
27.	Buying	8	

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
28. Consumer problems	9	4
29. Ordering and receiving merchandise	7	
30. Selling	7	
31. Sales organizations	6	-
32. Advertising	7	
33. Shipping	7	
34. Cash jayments	8	
35. Personnel organization	5	
36. Sole proprietorship business	5	
37. Partnerships	5	
38. The corporation	5	
39. Budgeting	9	
40. Where and how to find facts	8	
41. Operation of trading concerns	5	
42. Office activities	6	
43. Stock keeping	5	
44. Billing	5	
45. Paying employees	6	
46. Handling cash	8	
47. Traffic regulations	6	
48. Public services	7	5
49. Personal accounts	8	_
50. Personal business papers	8	*
51. Co-operative institutions	5	_
52. Reading and writing numbers	5	
53. Business arithmetic	7	
54. Borrowing and loaning money	7	
55. Installment buying	8	

	MAXIMUM	SCORE
FEATURES	SCORE	ALLOTTED
56. Governmental aids in saving	7	
57. Home investing	7	
58. Travel services	7	_
59. Use of telephone directory	8	
60. Business conduct standards	7	7
61. Laws of society	7	7
62. Business and government	6	_
63. General welfare and business	5	4
64. Business law	4	1011
65. Conservation of natural resources	6	-
66. Conserving human resources	7	5
TOTAL SCORE	450	74
	despirate	
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS		
I. Pupil		
l. Preview	1.1	
2. Review questions	13	
3. Study helps	13	
4. Problems for discussion	14	
5. Workbooks	10	8
6. Preview questions	9	9
7. Activity projects	13	13
II. Teacher		
1. Free publication and service	13	11
2. Manual	14	14
3. Key to exercises and problems	15	10
4. References	13	5
5. Advisory service	12	10
TOTAL SCORE	150	100-

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
	E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
I. Quali	ty and Make-up		
l. Ur	nglazed paper	8	8
2. 01	ear type	11	11
3. Ir	iteresting title	8	8
4. In	pressiveness of make-up	8	2
5. Si	ze of text	7	5
6. Ec	conomical in price	9	7
7. We	all illustrated	9	6
II. Ocher	Features		
	lequate number of questions and tercises	9	9
2. Wo	orkbook optional with text	9	9
3. Au	thors have ability and experience	11	10
4. Re	ecency of publication	11	11
	TOTAL SCORE	100	86
_			
A. Prese	entation	200	143
B. Illus	trations	100	48
C. Conte	ent of Text	450	74
D. Teach	ner and Pupil Aids	150	128
E. Mecha	anical Features	100	86
	GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	479

SCORE CARD FOR RATING

JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOKS

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

Textbook B

Name of Textbook Rated:

I.

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
A. PRESENTATION		
. General		
1. Material logically presented	7	7
2. Unit method of presentation	7	6
3. Workbook accompanies	5	5
4. Index	8	7
5. Preface	6	6
6. Summaries	6	2
7. Illustrations	8	5
8. Problems for written work	7	5
9. Business arithmetic problems	7	1
10. Unit vocabulary drill	. 7	7
ll. Spelling drills	7	6
12. Penmanship drills	5	
13. Job problems	6	3
14. Quiz programs	5	2
15. Life situations and problems	8	4

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	7
17. Testing business understanding	7	6
18. Activity projects	7	3
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	5
2. Personal-use value	9	8
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	7
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	2
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	2
6. English improvement	7	4
7. Understanding of business terms	8	6
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	5
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	7
10. Give an understanding of business	8	6
11. Develop habits, abilities, and skil. for use in business	ls 8	6
TOTAL SCORE	200	142
B. ILLUSTRATIONS		
1. Actual photographs	20	14
2. Graphs	16	12
3. Charts	16	12
4. Business papers	22	18
5. Cartoons	14	14
6. Colored illustrations	12	
TOTAL SCORE	100	70

	FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
1.	Personality and character development	8	8
2.	Success requirements	7	7_
3.	Leisure time uses	6	-
4.	Good manners	7	7_
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	-
6.	Meaning of business	8	-6-
7.	Communication	9	-8
8.	Business letter writing	8	-8
9.	Mail services	8	-7-
10.	Telephone service	8	7_
11.	Teletypewriter	5	-5-
12.	Telegraph service	8	7-
13.	Cable service	6	-6-
14.	Wireless	6	+
15.	Radiograms	6	6
16.	Newspapers	7	
17.	Books and magazines	7	
18.	Filing	7	
19.	Thrift	8	-8-
20.	Investments	8	-6-
21.	Insurance	8	-8-
22.	Bank service and procedure	9	-8-
23.	Automobile transportation	7	-6-
24.	The trolley and its use	4	
25.	The railroad and its use	7	-6-
26.	Business organization and management	7	-+
27.	Buying	8	_8_

	FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
28.	Consumer problems	9	9
29.	Ordering and receiving merchandise	7	4
30.	Selling	7	3
31.	Sales organizations	6	2
32.	Advertising	7	5
33.	Shipping	7	6
34.	Cash Layments	8	_6
35.	Personnel organization	5	3
36.	Sole proprietorship business	5	
37.	Partnerships	5	
38.	The corporation	5	
39.	Budgeting	9	9
40.	Where and how to find facts	8	
41.	Operation of trading concerns	5	2
42.	Office activities	6	3
43.	Stock keeping	5	_1
44.	Billing	5	
45.	Paying employees	6	
46.	Handling cash	8	8
47.	Traffic regulations	6 -	6
48.	Public services	7	7
49.	Personal accounts	8	8
50.	Personal business papers	8	8 6 3
51.	Co-operative institutions	5	3
52.	Reading and writing numbers	5	_1
53.	Business arithmetic	7	3
54.	Borrowing and loaning money	7	5
55.	Installment buying	8	6

		MAXIMUM	SCORE 79
	FEATURES	SCORE	ALLOTTED
56	. Governmental aids in saving	7	4_
57	. Home investing	7	5
58	. Travel services	7	7
59	. Use of telephone directory	8	8
60	. Business conduct standards	7	7
61	Laws of society	7	5
62	. Business and government	6	3
63	General welfare and business	5	
64	. Business law	4	3
65	. Conservation of natural resources	6	2
66	. Conserving human resources	7	5-
	TOTAL SCORE	450	306
	D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS		
т	Pupil		
1.	1. Preview	11	
	2. Review questions		-10-
	3. Study helps	13	12
	4. Problems for discussion	14	12
	5. Workbooks	10	-14
	6. Preview questions	9	-9
	7. Activity projects	13	-9-
тт	Teacher	10	_7_
11.	1. Free publication and service	13	
	2. Manual	14	-10
			-18
	 Key to exercises and problems References 	15	-10
	5. Advisory service	13	-9
		12	-10
	TOTAL SCORE	150	100

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
I. Quality and Make-up		
1. Unglazed paper	8	_8
2. Clear type	11	11
3. Interesting title	8	8
4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	8
5. Size of text	7	_7
6. Economical in price	9	8
7. Well illustrated	9	6
II. Other Features		
1. Adequate number of questions and exercises	9	9
2. Workbook optional with text	9	9
3. Authors have ability and experience	11	10
4. Recency of publication	11	6
TOTAL SCORE	100	90
	ander sitte formen og forske første sitter som	
A. Presentation	200	142
B. Illustrations	100	_70_
C. Content of Text	450	306
D. Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	124
E. Mechanical Features	100	90
GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	752

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

Name of Textbook Rated: Textbook C

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	A. PRESENTATION		
I. Ge	neral		
1.	Material logically presented	7	6
2.	Unit method of presentation	7	7
3.	Workbook accompanies	5	4
4.	Index	8	8
5.	Preface	6	6
6.	Summaries	6	5
7.	Illustrations	8	6
8.	Problems for written work	7	7
9.	Business arithmetic problems	7	7
10.	Unit vocabulary drill	7	7
11.	Spelling drills	7	4
12.	Penmanship drills	5	
13.	Job problems	6	5
14.	Quiz programs	5	3
15.	Life situations and problems	8	5

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	7
17. Testing business understanding	7	7
18. Activity projects	7	7
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	5
2. Personal-use value	9	8
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	7
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	7
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	
6. English improvement	7	5
7. Understanding of business terms	8	7
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	5
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	2
10. Give an understanding of business	8	7
ll. Develop habits, abilities, and skill for use in business	8	6
TOTAL SCORE	200	160
B. ILLUSTRATIONS		
1. Actual photographs	20	6
2. Graphs	16	10
3. Charts	16	10
4. Business papers	22	20
5. Cartoons	14	
6. Colored illustrations	12	4
TOTAL SCORE	100	50

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
l.	Personality and character development	8	
2.	Success requirements	7	5
3.	Leisure time uses	6	2
4.	Good manners	7	4
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	4
6.	Meaning of business	8	7
7.	Communication	9	9
8.	Business letter writing	8	2
9.	Mail services	8	8
10.	Telephone service	8	8
11.	Teletypewriter	5	_
12.	Telegraph service	8	7
13.	Cable service	6	6
14.	Wireless	6	2
15.	Radiograms	6	6
16.	Newspapers	7	
17.	Books and magazines	7	
18.	Filing	7	7
19.	Thrift	8	7
20.	Investments	8	7
21.	Insurance	8	7
22.	Bank service and procedure	9	8
23.	Automobile transportation	7	7
24.	The trolley and its use	4	-
25.	The railroad and its use	7	6
26.	Business organization and management	7	7
27.	Buying	8	8

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
28.	Consumer problems	9	-8
29.	Ordering and receiving merchandise	7	-7
30.	Selling	7	-7
31.	Sales organizations	6	-B
32.	Advertising	7	
33.	Shipping	7	7
34.	Cash jayments	8	7
35.	Personnel organization	5	4
36.	Sele proprietorship business	5	4
37.	Partnerships	5	4
38.	The corporation	5	4
39.	Budgeting	9	9
40.	Where and how to find facts	8	2
41.	Operation of trading concerns	5	5
42.	Office activities	6	6
43.	Stock keeping	õ	5
44.	Billing	5	5
45.	Paying employees	6	6
46.	Handling cash	8	8
47.	Traffic regulations	6	2
48.	Public services	7	2
49.	Personal accounts	8	6
50.	Personal business papers	8	5
51.	Co-operative institutions	5	
52.	Reading and writing numbers	5	3
53.	Business arithmetic	7	5
54.	Borrowing and loaning money	7	6
55.	Installment buying	8	8

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE 85
56. Governmental aids in saving	7	
57. Home investing	7	
58. Travel services	7	-
59. Use of telephone directory	8	-
60. Business conduct standards	7	-8
61. Laws of society	7	-8
62. Business and government	6	+
63. General welfare and business	5	-1-
64. Business law	4	
65. Conservation of natural resources	6	
66. Conserving human resources	7	-8
TOTAL SCORE	450	304
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS		
I. Pupil		
l. Preview	11	-6
2. Review questions	13	-10-
3. Study helps	13	-10-
4. Problems for discussion	14	-18-
5. Workbooks	10	
6. Preview questions	9	
7. Activity projects	13	-18-
II. Teacher		
1. Free publication and service	13	-10-
2. Manual	14	-18-
3. Key to exercises and problems	15	10
4. References	13	-8-
5. Advisory service	12	-8-
TOTAL SCORE	150	105

	×	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
			boons	
		E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
	I.	Quality and Make-up		
		1. Unglazed paper	8	4
		2. Clear type	11	
		3. Interesting title	8	-8
		4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	- G
		5. Size of text	7	
		6. Economical in price	9	-
		7. Well illustrated	9	
I	I.	Other Features		
		1. Adequate number of questions and	0	
		exercises	9	
		2. Workbook optional with text	9	
		3. Authors have ability and experience	11	9-
		4. Recency of publication	11	0
		TOTAL SCORE	100	81
	Α.	Presentation	200	160
	в.	Illustrations	100 .	-50-
	c.	Content of Text	450	505
	D.	Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	105
	Ε.	Mechanical Features	100	
				-81-
		GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	700

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

Name of Textbook Rated: Textbook D

		FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
		A. PRESENTATION		
I	. Ge:	neral		
	1.	Material logically presented	7	5
	2.	Unit method of presentation	7	_7_
	3.	Workbook accompanies	5	5
	4.	Index	8	8
	5.	Preface	6	5
	6.	Summaries	6	4
	7.	Illustrations	8	7
	8,	Problems for written work	7	6
	9.	Business arithmetic problems	7	6
	10.	Unit vocabulary drill	7	7_
	11.	Spelling drills	7	7
	12.	Penmanship drills	5	5
	13.	Job problems	6	4
	14.	Quiz programs	5	3
	15.	Life situations and problems	8	6

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	6
17. Testing business understanding	7	6
18. Activity projects	7	_6_
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	_5_
2. Personal-use value	9	_7
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	6
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	6
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	_5_
6. English improvement	7	5
7. Understanding of business terms	8	_7_
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	_7
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	6
10. Give an understanding of business	8	8
11. Develop habits, abilities, and skill for use in business	8	6
TOTAL SCORE	200	171
B. ILLUSTRATIONS		
1. Actual photographs	20	16
2. Graphs	16	-
3. Charts	16	16
4. Business papers	22	20
5. Cartoons	14	8
6. Colored illustrations	12	10
TOTAL SCORE	100	70

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
1.	Personality and character development	8	6
2.	Success requirements	7	5
3.	Leisure time uses	6	2 4
4.	Good manners	7	4
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	6
6.	Meaning of business	8	8
7.	Communication	9	9
8.	Business letter writing	8	8
9.	Mail services	8	8
10.	Telephone service	8	8
11.	Teletypewriter	5	5
12.	Telegraph service	8	8
13.	Cable service	6	6
14.	Wireless	6	_3
15.	Radiograms	6	6
16.	Newspapers	7	3
17.	Books and magazines	7	
18.	Filing	7	3 7 8
19.	Thrift	8	8
20.	Investments	8	8
21.	Insurance	8	8 9 6
22.	Bank service and procedure	9	9
23.	Automobile transportation	7	6
24.	The trolley and its use	4	
25.	The railroad and its use	7	6
26.	Business organization and management	7	6
27.	Buying	8	7

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
28.	Consumer problems	9	3
29.	Ordering and receiving merchandise	7	_6
30.	Selling	7	_7
31.	Sales organizations	6	_5
32.	Advertising	7	6
33.	Shipping	7	6
34.	Cash jayments	8	_8
35.	Personnel organization	5	3
36.	Sole proprietorship business	5	3
37.	Partnerships	5	3
38.	The corporation	5	3
39.	Budgeting	9	9
40.	Where and how to find facts	8	7
41.	Operation of trading concerns	5	_4
42.	Office activities	6	5
43.	Stock keeping	5	5
44.	Billing	5	_4
45.	Paying employees	6	5
46.	Handling cash	8	8
47.	Traffic regulations	6	6
48.	Public services	7	6
49.	Personal accounts	8	8
50.	Personal business papers	8	6
51.	Co-operative institutions	5	3
52.	Reading and writing numbers	5	5
53.	Business arithmetic	7	7
54.	Borrowing and loaning money	7	7
55.	Installment buying	8	_7_

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
56. Governmental aids in saving	7	6
57. Home investing	7	5
58. Travel services	7	5
59. Use of telephone directory	8	8
60. Business conduct standards	7	5
61. Laws of society	7	6
62. Business and government	6	6
63. General welfare and business	5	8 5 6 6 3 4 6 7
64. Business law	4	4
65. Conservation of natural resources	6	6
66. Conserving human resources	7	7
TOTAL SCORE	450	381
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS		
I. Pupil		
l. Preview	11	15
2. Review questions	13	10
3. Study helps	13	13
4. Problems for discussion	14	10
5. Workbooks	10	3
6. Preview questions	9	12
7. Activity projects	13	
II. Teacher		13
1. Free publication and service	13	12
2. Manual	14	12
3. Key to exercises and problems	15	10
4. References	13	12
5. Advisory service	12	
TOTAL SCORE	150	130

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
		DOORE	AD DOITED
-	E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
1.	Quality and Make-up		
	1. Unglazed paper	8	-8-
	2. Clear type	11	11-
	3. Interesting title	8	-8-
	4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	-8-
	5. Size of text	7	_7_
	6. Economical in price	9	
	7. Well illustrated	9	
II.	Other Features		1
	1. Adequate number of questions and		44
	exercises	9	9
	2. Workbook optional with text	9	9
	3. Authors have ability and experience	11	11
	4. Recency of publication	11	8
	TOTAL SCORE	100	.97
Α.	Presentation	200	171
Β.	Illustrations	100	70
С.	Content of Text	450	-381
D.	Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	-130
Ε.	Mechanical Features	100	97
	GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	849

SCORE CARD FOR RATING

JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOKS

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

Name of Textbook Rated: Textbook E

I.

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
A. PRESENTATION		
. General		
1. Material logically presented	7	6
2. Unit method of presentation	7	7
3. Workbook accompanies	5	5
4. Index	8	8
5. Preface	6	6
6. Summaries	6	
7. Illustrations	8	5
8. Problems for written work	7	9
9. Business arithmetic problems	7	7
10. Unit vocabulary drill	7	7
ll. Spelling drills	7	7
12. Penmanship drills	5	5
13. Job problems	6	6
14. Quiz programs	5	4
15. Life situations and problems	8	8

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	7
17. Testing business understanding	7	7
18. Activity projects	7	4
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	4
2. Personal-use value	9	6
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	5
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	6
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	5
6. English improvement	7	5
7. Understanding of business terms	8	8
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	8
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	6
10. Give an understanding of business	8	8
ll. Develop habits, abilities, and skill for use in business	. s 8	8
TOTAL SCORE	200	175
B. ILLUSTRATIONS		
1. Actual photographs	20	10
2. Graphs	16	
3. Charts	16	14
4. Business papers	22	20
5. Cartoons	14	10
6. Colored illustrations	12	
TOTAL SCORE	100	54

	FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
1.	Personality and character development	8	6
2.	Success requirements	7	7
3.	Leisure time uses .	6	6
4.	Good manners	7	_6
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	8
6.	Meaning of business	8	8
7.	Communication	9	9
8.	Business letter writing	8	8
9.	Mail services	8	8
10.	Telephone service	8	8
11.	Teletypewriter	5	5
12.	Telegraph service	8	8
13.	Cable service	6	6
14.	Wireless	6	6
15.	Radiograms	6	6
16.	Newspapers	7	1 - m.
17.	Books and magazines	7	
18.	Filing	7	7
19.	Thrift	8	8
20.	Investments	8	8
21.	Insurance	8	8
22.	Bank service and procedure	9	9
23.	Automobile transportation	7	7
24.	The trolley and its use	4	-
25.	The railroad and its use	7	7
26.	Business organization and management	7	_7
27.	Buying	8	8

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED	-
28. Consumer problems	9	7_	
29. Ordering and receiving merchandise	7		
30. Selling	7	-	
31. Sales organizations	6	-	
32. Advertising	7		
33. Shipping	7	7	
34. Cash jayments	8	-8	
35. Personnel organization	5	-	
36. Sole proprietorship business	5		
37. Partnerships	5	-	
38. The corporation	5		
39. Budgeting	9	9	
40. Where and how to find facts	8	4	
41. Operation of trading concerns	5		
42. Office activities	6	-5	
43. Stock keeping	5	5	
44. Billing	5	4	
45. Paying employees	6		
46. Handling cash	8	8	
47. Traffic regulations	6	2	
48. Public services	7	5_	
49. Personal accounts	8	8	
50. Personal business papers	8	<u>8</u>	
51. Co-operative institutions	5	5	
52. Reading and writing numbers	5	5	
53. Business arithmetic	7	7	
54. Borrowing and loaning money	7	5	
55. Installment buying	8	6	

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
56. Governmental aids in saving	7	-
57. Home investing	7	5
58. Travel services	7	7
59. Use of telephone directory	8	8
60. Business conduct standards	7	5
61. Laws of society	7	6
62. Business and government	6	-
63. General welfare and business	5	3
64. Business law	4	
65. Conservation of natural resources	6	-
66. Conserving human resources	7	5
TOTAL SCORE	450	328
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS		
I. Pupil		
1. Preview]1	
2. Review questions	13	13
3. Study helps	13	12
4. Problems for discussion	14	14
5. Workbooks	10	10
6. Preview questions	9	п
7. Activity projects	13	
II. Teacher		10
1. Free publication and service	13	
2. Manual	14	12
3. Key to exercises and problems 🐭	15	15
4. References	13	6
5. Advisory service	12	
TOTAL SCORE	150	111

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
	E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
I.	Quality and Make-up		
	1. Unglazed paper	8	8
	2. Clear type	11	11
	3. Interesting title	8	4
	4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	7
	5. Size of text	-7	7
	6. Economical in price	9	9
	7. Well illustrated	9	7
II.	Other Features		
	1. Adequate number of questions and exercises	9	9
	2. Workbook optional with text	9	9
	3. Authors have ability and experience	11	11
	4. Recency of publication	11	6
	TOTAL SCORE	100	88
-			
Α.	Presentation	200	175
В.	Illustrations	100	54
с.	Content of Text	450	328
D.	Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	111
Ε.	Mechanical Features	100	88
	GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	756

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

Name of Textbook Rated:

Textbook F

FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
A. PRESENTATIO	N	
I. General		
1. Material logically presented	7	7
2. Unit method of presentation	7	7
3. Workbook accompanies	5	5
4. Index	8	8
5. Preface	6	6
6. Summaries	6	
7. Illustrations	8	8
8. Problems for written work	7	6
9. Business arithmetic problems	7	7
10. Unit vocabulary drill	7	7
ll. Spelling drills	7	
12. Penmanship drills	5	
13. Job problems	6	4
14. Quiz programs	5	
15. Life situations and problems	8	6

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	_6_
17. Testing business understanding	7	-6-
18. Activity projects	7	-7
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	-5-
2. Personal-use value	9	
3, Evaluation of goods and services	7	_6_
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	7_
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	
6. English improvement	7	
7. Understanding of business terms	8	_8_
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	-6-
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	
10. Give an understanding of business	8	
ll. Develop habits, abilities, and skill for use in business	. s 8	5
TOTAL SCORE	200	144
B, ILLUSTRATIONS		
1. Actual photographs	20	15
2. Graphs	16	
3. Charts	16	14
4. Business papers	22	20_
5. Cartoons	14	
6. Colored illustrations	12	_5_
TOTAL SCORE	100	54

C. CONTENT OF TEXT1. Personality and character development662. Success requirements763. Leisure time uses6-4. Good manners765. Occupations and vocational guidance886. Meaning of business887. Communication998. Business letter writing879. Mail services8810. Telephone service8811. Teletypewriter5512. Telegraph service6613. Cable service6614. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use7725. The reilroad and its use7726. Business organization and management7727. Buying866		FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED	101
2. Success requirements763. Leisure time uses6		No. of Concession, Name of Con Name of Concession, Name of Concess			
3. Leisure time uses 6 4. Good manners 7 5. Occupations and vocational guidance 8 6. Meaning of business 8 7. Communication 9 9. Mail services 8 8. D. Telephone service 8 10. Telephone service 8 11. Teletypewriter 5 12. Telegraph service 8 13. Cable service 6 14. Wireless 6 15. Radiograms 6 16. Newspapers 7 17. Books and magazines 7 18. Filling 7 19. Thrift 8 20. Investments 8 21. Insurance 8 22. Bank service and procedure 9 23. Automobile transportation 7 24. The trolley and its use 7 25. The railroad and its use 7 26. Business organization and management 7	1.	Personality and character development	8	8	
4. Good manners 7 6 5. Occupations and vocational guidance 8 8 6. Meaning of business 8 8 7. Communication 9 9 8. Business letter writing 8 7 9. Mail services 8 8 10. Telephone service 8 8 11. Teletypewriter 5 5 12. Telegraph service 8 8 13. Cable service 6 6 14. Wireless 6 6 15. Radiograms 6 6 16. Newspapers 7 7 17. Books and magazines 7 7 18. Filing 7 7 19. Thrift 8 8 20. Investments 8 8 21. Insurance 8 8 22. Bank service and procedure 9 9 23. Automobile transportation 7 7 24. The trolley and its use 7 7 25. The railroad and its use 7 7 26. Business organization and management 7	2.	Success requirements	7	6	
5. Occupations and vocational guidance 8 8 6. Meaning of business 8 8 7. Communication 9 9 8. Business letter writing 8 7 9. Mail services 8 8 10. Telephone service 8 8 11. Teletypewriter 5 5 12. Telegraph service 8 8 13. Cable service 6 6 14. Wireless 6 6 15. Radiograms 6 6 16. Newspapers 7 7 17. Books and magazines 7 7 18. Filing 7 7 19. Thrift 8 8 20. Investments 8 8 21. Insurance 8 8 22. Bank service and procedure 9 9 23. Automobile transportation 7 7 24. The trolley and its use 7 7 25. The railroad and its use 7 7 26. Business organization and management 7 7	3.	Leisure time uses	6		
6. Meaning of business 8 8 7. Communication 9 9 8. Business letter writing 8 7 9. Mail services 8 8 10. Telephone service 8 8 11. Teletypewriter 5 5 12. Telegraph service 8 8 13. Cable service 6 6 14. Wireless 6 6 15. Radiograms 6 6 16. Newspapers 7 7 17. Books and magazines 7 7 18. Filing 7 7 19. Thrift 8 8 20. Investments 8 8 21. Insurance 8 8 22. Bank service and procedure 9 9 23. Automobile transportation 7 7 24. The trolley and its use 4 4 25. The railroad and its use 7 7 26. Business organization and management 7 7	4.	Good manners	7	6	
7. Communication998. Business latter writing879. Mail services8810. Telephone service8811. Teletypewriter5512. Telegraph service8813. Cable service6614. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	8	
8. Business latter writing 8 7 9. Mail services 8 8 10. Telephone service 8 8 11. Teletypewriter 5 5 12. Telegraph service 8 8 13. Cable service 6 6 14. Wireless 6 6 15. Radiograms 6 6 16. Newspapers 7 7 17. Books and magazines 7 7 18. Filing 7 7 19. Thrift 8 8 20. Investments 8 8 21. Insurance 8 8 22. Bank service and procedure 9 9 23. Automobile transportation 7 7 24. The trolley and its use 4 4 25. The railroad and its use 7 7 26. Business organization and management 7 7	6.	Meaning of business	8	8	
9. Mail services8810. Telephone service8811. Teletypewriter5512. Telegraph service8813. Cable service6614. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	7.	Communication	9	9	
10. Telephone service8811. Teletypewriter5512. Telegraph service8813. Cable service6614. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use7726. Business organization and management77	8.	Business letter writing	8	7	
11. Teletypewriter5512. Telegraph service8813. Cable service6614. Wireless6614. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use7725. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	9.	Mail services	8	8	
12. Telegraph service8813. Cable service6614. Wireless6614. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapars7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use7725. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	10.	Telephone service	8	8	
13. Cable service6614. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use7725. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	11.	Teletypewriter	5	5	
14. Wireless6615. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use7725. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	12.	Telegraph service	8	8	
15. Radiograms6616. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	13.	Cable service	6	6	
16. Newspapers7717. Books and magazines7717. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	14.	Wireless	6	6	
17. Books and magazines7718. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	15.	Radiograms	6	6	
18. Filing7719. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	16.	Newspapers	7	7	
19. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	17.	Books and magazines	7	7	
19. Thrift8820. Investments8821. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	18.	Filing	7	7	
21. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	19.	Thrift	8	8	
21. Insurance8822. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	20.	Investments	8	8	
22. Bank service and procedure9923. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	21.	Insurance	8	8	
23. Automobile transportation7724. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management77	22.	Bank service and procedure	9	9	
24. The trolley and its use4425. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management7727. Buying86	23.	Automobile transportation	7	7	
25. The railroad and its use7726. Business organization and management7727. Buying86	24.	The trolley and its use	4	4	
26. Business organization and management7727. Buying86	25.	The railroad and its use	7	7	
27. Buying 8 6	26.	Business organization and management	7	7	
	27.	Buying	8	6	

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCOR E ALLOTTED	7.
28.	Consumer problems	9	7	
29.	Ordering and receiving merchandise	7	7	
30.	Selling	7	7	
31.	Sales organizations	6	6	
32.	Advertising	7	7	
33.	Shipping	7	7	
34.	Cash jayments	8	8	
35.	Personnel organization	5	5	
36.	Sole proprietorship business	5	5	
37.	Partnerships	5	5	
38.	The corporation	5	5	
39.	Budgeting	9	9	
40.	Where and how to find facts	8		
41.	Operation of trading concerns	5	4	
42.	Office activities	6	5	
43.	Stock keeping	õ	5	
44.	Billing	5	5	
45.	Paying employees	6		
46.	Handling cash	8	8	
47.	Traffic regulations	6	6	
48.	Public services	7	6	
49.	Personal accounts	8	8	
50.	Personal business papers	8	6	
51.	Co-operative institutions	5	3	
52.	Reading and writing numbers	5	5	
53.	Business arithmetic	7	6	
54.	Borrowing and loaning money	7	6	
55.	Installment buying	8	8	

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED	103
56. Governmental aids in saving	7		
57. Home investing	7	5	
58. Travel services	7	7	
59. Use of telephone directory	8	8	
60. Business conduct standards	7	5	
61. Laws of society	7		
62. Business and government	6	6	
63. General welfare and business	5	5	
64. Business law	4		
65. Conservation of natural resources	6		
66. Conserving human resources	7	6	
TOTAL SCORE	450	391	
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS			
I. Pupil			
1. Preview	3.3.	4	
2. Review questions	13	12	
3. Study helps	13	9	
4. Problems for discussion	14	14	
5. Workbooks	10	10	
6. Preview questions	9		
7. Activity projects	13	10	
II. Teacher			
1. Free publication and service	13	10	
2. Manual	14	12	
3. Key to exercises and problems	15	10	
4. References	13	13	
5. Advisory service	12	_8	
TOTAL SCORE	150	112	

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
	E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
I.	Quality and Make-up		
	1. Unglazed paper	8	8
	2. Clear type	11	11
	3. Interesting title	8	_7
x	4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	7
	5. Size of text	7	7
	6. Economical in price	9	2
	7. Well illustrated	9	8
II.	Other Features		
	1. Adequate number of questions and exercises	9	8
	2. Workbook optional with text	9	9
	3. Authors have ability and experience	11	10
	4. Recency of publication	11	10
	TOTAL SCORE	100	94
 A.	Presentation	200	144
В.	Illustrations	100	54

C. Content of Text	450	391
D. Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	112
E. Mechanical Features	100	94
GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	795

JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOKS

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

Name of Textbook Rated:	ok G	
FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
A. PRESENTATION		
[. General		
1. Material logically presented	7	-
2. Unit method of presentation	7	-5-
3. Workbook accompanies	5	-5-
4. Index	8	-7_
5. Preface	6	-6-
6. Summaries	6	-5-
7. Illustrations	8	-6-
8. Problems for written work	7 -	-6-
9. Business arithmetic problems	7	-6-
10. Unit vocabulary drill	7	-7-
ll. Spelling drills	7	-5-
12. Penmanship drills	5	
13. Job problems	6	-
14. Quiz programs	5	-3-
15. Life situations and problems	8	_6_

T

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	7
17. Testing business understanding	7	7
18. Activity projects	7	7
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	5
2. Personal-use value	9	7
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	5
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	6
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	1
6. English improvement	7	6
7. Understanding of business terms	8	7
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	6
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	5
10. Give an understanding of business	8	6
11. Develop habits, abilities, and skills for use in business	s 8	5
TOTAL SCORE	200	153
B. ILLUSTRATIONS		and and a second se
1. Actual photographs	20	18
2. Graphs	16	10
3. Charts	16	8
4. Business papers	22	20
5. Cartoons	14	4
6. Colored illustrations	12	8
TOTAL SCORE	100	68

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
1. Personality and character development	8	5
2. Success requirements	7 .	5
3. Leisure time uses	6	3
4. Good manners	7	3 4 5
5. Occupations and vocational guidance	8	5
6. Meaning of business	8	8
7. Communication	9	9
8. Business letter writing	8	8
9. Mail services	8	7
10. Telephone service	8	9 8 7 8 1 8 3
ll. Teletypewriter	5	1
12. Telegraph service	8	8
13. Cable service	6	3
14. Wireless	6	
15. Radiograms	6	3
16. Newspapers	7	2
17. Books and magazines	7	2
18. Filing	7	7
19. Thrift	8	8
20. Investments	8	8
21. Insurance	8	8
22. Bank service and procedure	9	9
23. Automobile transportation	7	7
24. The trolley and its use	4	
25. The railroad and its use	7	7 6 7
26. Business organization and management	7	6
27. Buying	8	7

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED	108
28. Co	nsumer problems	9	-7	
29. Or	dering and receiving merchandise	7	-8-	
30. Se	lling	7	-5-	
31. Sa	les organizations	6	-5-	
32. Ad	vertising	7	-8-	
33. Sh	ipping	7	-5-	
34. Cas	sh jayments	8	-9-	
35. Pe:	rsonnel organization	5	-5-	
36. So	le proprietorship business	5	-8-	
37. Pa:	rtnerships	5	-5-	
38. The	e corporation	5.	+	
39. Bu	dgeting	9	9	
40. Wh	ere and how to find facts	8	7	
41. Op	eration of trading concerns	5	3	
42. Of	fice activities	6	5	
43. St	ock keeping	5	4	
44. Bi	lling	5		
45. Pa	ying employees	6	3	
46. Hay	ndling cash	8	8	
47. Tr	affic regulations	6	5	
48. Pu	blic services	7	5	
49. Pe	rsonal accounts	8	2	
50. Pe	rsonal business papers	8	6	
51. Co	-operative institutions	5	3	
52. Re	ading and writing numbers	5	5	
53. Bus	siness arithmetic	7	6	
54. Bo	rrowing and loaning money	7	6	
55. In	stallment buying	8	6	

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE 109 ALLOTTED
56. Governmental aids in saving	7	6
57. Home investing	7	_6
58. Travel services	7	7
59. Use of telephone directory	8	8
60. Business conduct standards	7	_7
61. Laws of society	7	_6
62. Business and government	6	5
63. General welfare and business	5	5_
64. Business law	4	2
65. Conservation of natural resources	6	4
66. Conserving human resources	7	4
TOTAL SCORE	450	360
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS		
I. Pupil		
l. Preview	11	_8
2. Review questions	13	13
3. Study helps	13	13
4. Problems for discussion	14	13
5. Workbooks	10	10
6. Preview questions	9	_2
7. Activity projects	13	13
II. Teacher		
1. Free publication and service	13	12
2. Manual	14	13
3. Key to exercises and problems	15	15
4. References	13	12
5. Advisory service	12	12
TOTAL SCORE	150	13 6

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
I. Quality and Make-up		
1. Unglazed paper	8	8
2. Clear type	11	11
3. Interesting title	8	6
4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	8
5. Size of text	7	7
6. Economical in price	9	9
7. Well illustrated	9	8
II. Other Features		
1. Adequate number of questions and exercises	9	9
2. Workbook optional with text	9	9
3. Authors have ability and experience	11	10
4. Recency of publication	11	10
TOTAL SCORE	100	95
A. Presentation	200	153

	GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	812
E.	Mechanical Features	100	95
D.	Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	136
c.	Content of Text	450	360
Β.	Illustrations	100	68

JUNIOR BUSINESS TRAINING TEXTBOOKS

Directions for using the score card: Each junior business training text should be rated on a separate score card. Features should be rated on the basis of a maximum score listed in the column headed "Maximum score." If, in the opinion of the rater, that particular item needs no improvement, the feature should be given the maximum score. If the feature is omitted from the text or is included in such a manner as to be detrimental to the learning activities of the pupil, the item should be rated zero. Any other score between the two extremes of zero and maximum may be allotted to each feature in accordance with the judgment of the rater. A total "Score allowed" should be computed for each of the main divisions and for the textbook as a whole.

I.

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	A. PRESENTATION		
. Ge	neral		
1.	Material logically presented	7	7
2.	Unit method of presentation	7	7
3.	Workbook accompanies	5	
4.	Index	8	8
5.	Preface	6	6
6.	Summaries	6	6
7.	Illustrations	8	8
8.	Problems for written work	7	7
9.	Business arithmetic problems	7	_7
10.	Unit vocabulary drill	7	7
11.	Spelling drills	7	7
12.	Penmanship drills	5	5
13.	Job problems	6	6
14.	Quiz programs	5	5
15.	Life situations and problems	8	8

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
16. Thought problems and questions	7	7
17. Testing business understanding	7	7
18. Activity projects	7	7
II. Aims in presentation of material		
1. Indirect vocational	6	5
2. Personal-use value	9	9
3. Evaluation of goods and services	7	7
4. Skill maintenance in arithmetic	7	6
5. Improvement of penmanship	5	5
6. English improvement	7	7
7. Understanding of business terms	8	8
8. Vocational guidance and exploration	8	7
9. Personal understanding and guidance	7	6
10. Give an understanding of business	8	8
11. Develop habits, abilities, and skill for use in business	ls 3	7
TOTAL SCORE	200	190
B. ILLUSTRATIONS		
1. Actual photographs	20	20
2. Graphs	16	
3. Charts	16	16
4. Business papers	22	10
5. Cartoons	14	14
6. Colored illustrations	12	
TOTAL SCORE	100	60

	FEATURES	MAX IMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
	C. CONTENT OF TEXT		
1.	Personality and character development	8	8
2.	Success requirements	7	6
3.	Leisure time uses	6	5
4.	Good manners	7	7
5.	Occupations and vocational guidance	8	7
6.	Meaning of business	8	8
7.	Communication	9	9
8.	Business letter writing	8	8
9.	Mail services	8	8
10.	Telephone service	8	8
11.	Teletypewriter	5	5
12.	Telegraph service	8	8
13.	Cable service	6	6
14.	Wireless	6	4
15.	Radiograms	6	6
16.	Newspapers	7	7
17.	Books and magazines	7	6
18.	Filing	7	7
19.	Thrift	8	8
20.	Investments	8	8
21.	Insurance	8	8
22.	Bank service and procedure	9	9
23.	Automobile transportation	7	7
24.	The trolley and its use	4	7 8 8 9 7 4 7 7 8
25.	The railroad and its use	7	7
26.	Business organization and management	7	7
27.	Buying	8	8

	FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED
28.	Consumer problems	9	8
29.	Ordering and receiving merchandise	7	6
30.	Selling	7	7
31.	Sales organizations	6	6
32.	Advertising	7	7
33.	Shipping	7	6 7 6 7 7 7 8 5 4 5 5 9 8 5 9 8 5 6
34.	Cash jayments	8	8
35.	Personnel organization	5	5
36.	Sole proprietorship business	5	4
37.	Partnerships	5	5
38.	The corporation	5.	5
39.	Budgeting	9	9
40.	Where and how to find facts	8	8
41.	Operation of trading concerns	5	5
42.	Office activities	6	6
43.	Stock keeping	5	
44.	Billing	5	
45.	Paying employees	6	
46.	Handling cash	8	8
47.	Traffic regulations	6	3
48.	Public services	7	7
49.	Personal accounts	8	8
50.	Personal business papers	8	6
51.	Co-operative institutions	5	5
52.	Reading and writing numbers	5	5
53.	Business arithmetic	7	8 3 7 8 6 5 5 7 7 7 8
54.	Borrowing and loaning money	7	7
55.	Installment buying	8	8

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE ALLOTTED	115
56. Governmental aids in saving	7	Sector Sector	
57. Home investing	7	6	
58. Travel services	7	5	
59. Use of telephone directory	8	7	
60. Business conduct standards	7	7	
61. Laws of society	7	7 7 6	
62. Business and government	6	7	
63. General welfare and business	5		
64. Business law	4	5	
65. Conservation of natural resources	6		
66. Conserving human resources	7		
TOTAL SCORE	450	2	
		410	
D. TEACHER AND PUPIL AIDS			
I. Pupil			
l. Preview	11	10	
2. Review questions	13	12	
3. Study helps	13	11	
4. Problems for discussion	14	14	
5. Workbooks	10		
6. Preview questions	9	9	
7. Activity projects	13	12	
II. Teacher			
1. Free publication and service	13	10	
2. Manual	14	6	
3. Key to exercises and problems	15		
4. References	13		
5. Advisory service	12	8	
TOTAL SCORE	150	89	

FEATURES	MAXIMUM SCORE	SCORE AL LOTTED
E. MECHANICAL FEATURES		
I. Quality and Make-up		
1. Unglazed paper	8	8
2. Clear type	11	11
3. Interesting title	8	6 7 7 9 9
4. Impressiveness of make-up	8	7
5. Size of text	7	7
6. Economical in price	9	9
7. Well illustrated	9	9
II. Ocher Features		9
1. Adequate number of questions and exercises	9	_
2. Workbook optional with text	9	3
3. Authors have ability and experience	11	11
4. Recency of publication	11	11
TOTAL SCORE	100	91
A. Presentation	200	190
B. Illustrations	100	60
C. Content of Text	450	410
D. Teacher and Pupil Aids	150	92
E. Mechanical Features	100	91
GRAND TOTAL SCORE	1000	853

- 1. Ralph I. Shockey, High School Principal, Chambersburg, Pennsylvania.
- 2. P. A. Golden, High School Principal, Kingston, Pennsylvania.
- Wilbur Devilbiss, High School Principal, Frederick, Maryland.
- 4. Hazel Weare, Great Bend High School, Great Bend, Kansas.
- 5. Harry Hatcher, Head of Commerce Department, High School, Mishawaka, Indiana.
- 6. Aileene Kingsbury, High School, Hays, Kansas.
- 7. Mrs. Eulalia R. Goggin, Technical High School, 4351 Broadway, Oakland, California.
- 8. Laura Livermore, High School, Appleton, Wisconsin.
- 9. Wayne Toivanen, Weatherwax High School, Aberdeen, Wisconsin.
- Arthur J. Becker, Supervisor, Business Education, Salt Lake City Schools, Salt Lake City, Utah.
- R. L. Swanson, Wilson Junior High School, Appleton, Wisconsin.
- Mrs. Esther Haskell, Parkland Junior High School, Louisville, Kentucky.
- Col. T. E. Fitz-Hugh, Holmes High School, Covington, Kentucky.
- 14. J. C. Barnard, Boude Storey Junior High School, Dallas, Texas.
- 15. Jo Ann Davis, Oklahoma A. & M., Stillwater, Oklahoma.
- Woodrow Merry, Oklahoma A. & M. College, Stillwater, Oklahoma.
- 17. Gladys Davis, Horace Mann High School, Amarillo, Texas.
- Mary Fuller, Oklahoma A. & M. College, Stillwater, Oklahoma.
- 19. Hazel Garbers, St. Paul High School, St. Paul, Minnesota.
- 20. Mary Bell, Oklahoma A. & M. College, Stillwater, Oklahoma.

RATING COMMITTEE

Miss Agnes Lebeda, Caldwell High School, Caldwell, Kansas Mr. W. C. Silvey, Route 1, Duncan, Oklahoma

Mr. J. A. Kaufman, Superintendent of Schools, Foraker, Oklahoma.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Barnhart, Wilbur S., and Maxwell, Leslie B., <u>Social-Buisness</u> <u>Arithmetic with Introduction to Business</u>, Mentzer Bush & Company, New York, 1937.

Junior Business Training textbook combined with business arithmetic.

Bruner, Herbert A., "Criteria For Evaluating Course of Study Materials," Teachers College Record, November, 1937.

A list of criteria which may be used to evaluate course of study materials in any subject field.

Burr, Samuel E., "The Selection of Textbooks and The Use of Rating Scales," American School Board Journal, August, 1929.

A rating scale of approximately fifty items is given, which may be used to evaluate textbooks. No definite values are given to the various divisions.

Crabbe, Ernest H., and Salsgiver, Paul L., <u>General Business</u>, The Southwestern Publishing Company, Cincinnati, 1941.

Junior Business Training textbook with applied arithmetic.

Cupples, Claude C., "A Study of Vocabulary Burden of a Textbook in Junior Business Training," Masters Thesis, 1940, University of Michigan.

Checks vocabulary burden of a junior business training text.

Dalthorp, Charles J., "The Adoption of School Textbooks," American School Board Journal, October, 1938.

A list of criteria is presented which may assist in selecting textbooks in any field of study.

Eggleston, William C., Jr., "A Critical Examination of Nine Junior Business Training Textbooks," Masters Thesis, 1937, Denver University. To determine the relative worth of nine junior business training books as junior high school texts.

Good, Carter V., Barr, A. S., Scates, Douglas E., <u>The Method-ology of Educational Research</u>, D. Appleton-Century Company, New York, 1935.

Techniques employed in educational research.

Goodfellow, Raymond C., The Fundamentals of Business Training, The Macmillan Company, New York, 1940.

Junior Business Training textbook.

Greenstein, Max B., and Smithline, Henry, Our Daily Contacts with Business, Lyons and Carnahan, Chicago, 1937.

Junior Business Training textbook.

Haworth, E. Howard, "A Score Card For The Rating of First-Year High School Bookkeeping Texts," <u>Masters Thesis</u>, Oklahoma A. & M. College, 1939.

A study to develop a score card for rating bookkeeping texts and to apply the score card to selected bookkeeping textbooks.

Henry, Nelson B., "Can Politicians and Laymen Select Textbooks?" Nations Schools, January, 1934.

A discussion of textbook adopting agencies in the various states is given.

Holtsclaw, J. L., "Some Snares and Delusions in the Junior Business Course," <u>Business Education World</u>, September, 1934.

Five requirements which a course in junior business training must meet are given.

Jacobs, Leland B., "Eighteen Criteria for Choosing Textbooks," Clearing House, 1937.

A discussion of the need for a more objective selection of textbooks is given. Five general items are given to be used as a basis for textbook selection. Jones, Lloyd L., <u>Our Business Life</u>, The Gregg Publishing Company, New York, 1939.

Junior Business Training textbook.

Krey, Isabelle Brown, "A Vocabulary Study of Junior High School Textbooks on Business Training," Masters Thesis, 1934. George Washington University.

Checks vocabulary of three junior high school textbooks on business training with Thorndike's Teachers word book.

Maxwell, C. R., "Choosing the Best Textbook," School Executives Magazine, 1932.

A good discussion of the use of score cards for rating of textbooks is given.

Moody, Ivy LaCour, "The Development and Application of a Score Card in Evaluating Workbooks in Elementary Business Training," Masters Thesis, Oklahoma A. & M. College, 1939.

A study to develop a score card for rating elementary business training workbooks and to apply the score card to selected workbooks.

Nichols, Frederick G., Junior Business Training for Economic Living, American Book Company, New York, 1936.

Junior Business Training textbook.

Price, Max L., "An Evaluation of Textbooks for Junior Business Training in Terms of Six Criteria," Masters Thesis, 1940, Wittenberg College.

Evaluates six junior business training textbooks. Shows that the criteria formulated for evaluating these texts could be generally employed for textbook evaluation and selection in local high schools.

Reed, Clinton A., and Morgan, V. James, <u>Introduction to</u> <u>Business</u>, Allyn and Bacon, New York, 1940.

Junior Business Training textbook.

Sachs, Hyman, "The Textbook Beautiful," School Executives Magazine, November, 1937.

The attractiveness feature of textbooks is discussed.

Samuelson, Paul A., "A New Trend in Junior Business Training," Business Education World, June, 1937.

New trends in junior business training are given. The idea of enlarging on the experience of pupils is discussed.

Schug, Harry Penman, "An Analysis of Seven Recent Textbooks in the Field of Junior High School Mathematics," <u>Masters</u> Thesis, University of Washington, 1937.

A study to determine the proper status of junior high school mathematics.

Underwood, Willis O., "Guide For Textbook Analysis," American School Board Journal, March, 1941.

The author devised a guide for teachers to use in the selection of textbooks. This is a rather complete report and a good study.

Underwood, Willis O., "The Analysis and Selection of Elementary School Textbooks," <u>Masters</u> Thesis, 1938, Colorado University.

Attempts to determine how familiar teachers are with facts essential in analyzing textbooks objectively to ascertain certain criteria used in actual practice in judging textbooks; and to develop a score card for making the study of textbooks objective.

Whipple, Gertrude, "Items Considered in Selecting Textbooks When Score Card are Used," <u>Elementary School Journal</u>, 1935.

Six types of procedure used in selection of textbooks are discussed.

Whipple, Gertrude, "Procedures Used in State Adoptions," Elementary School Journal, 1936.

Three general types of procedure used by state textbook commissions in making textbook adoptions are discussed. ZuTavern, A. B., and Bullock, A. E., Everyday Business, The H. M. Rowe Company, Baltimore, 1936.

Junior Business Training textbook, Book Two.

ZuTavern, A. B., and Bullock, A. E., <u>The Business of Life</u>, Commercial Textbook Company, South Pasadena, California, 1936.

Junior Business Training textbook.

ZuTavern, A. B., and Erickson, Elmer J., The Business of Life, The H. M. Rowe Company, Baltimore, 1942.

Junior Business Training textbook.

"How Should Textbooks be Selected?" (Symposium) Journal of Education, February, March, 1940.

Statements of school administrators on the methods used in selecting textbooks in their schools. Typist: Jack A. Kaufman